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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBRE

Revenue Uz 591.1 593.4 0.4)%
Gross profit ES 51.9 51.7 0.3%
Profit before income tax expense % P15 %4 3 2 i s A 25.3 24.8 2.2%
Profit for the year FRE 21.6 20.9 3.7%

Basic and diluted earnings per share & 7 [z #5%E & Fl|
(HK cents) (L) 2.7 2.6 3.8%

Total assets BEHLE 399.3 356.9 11.9%
Total bank borrowings RITIERAERE - - 0%
Shareholders’ equity fi&% B 2 135.1 133.5 1.2%
Current ratio and quick ratio (times) BN R MR B R (£5) 1.5 1.6 6.3)%
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EEHRE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am pleased to present the
audited financial results of IBI Group Holdings Limited together with
its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 March 2020.

COMPANY OVERVIEW

Established in 1997, the Group is a building contractor focusing on
providing renovation services as a main contractor for property
projects in the private sector in both Hong Kong and Macau. Our
two main types of projects are fitting-out projects and alteration
and addition (“A&A”) projects.

Our major customers include a number of highly reputable
organisations and commercial enterprises in the private sector in
Hong Kong and Macau, including multi-national banks, hotel and
casino operators, a racing and betting operator and property
developers.

The Group’s competitive strengths have contributed to our
continued success and distinguished us from our competitors. We
believe our competitive strengths lie in three key specific areas of
the business, namely,

1. an established reputation and proven track record;

2. implementation, management and execution expertise; and

3. commitment to the management of risk, cash flow and
general financial security.

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group recorded profit after
tax of approximately HK$21.6 million (2019: HK$20.9 million) from
revenue totalling approximately HK$591.1 million (2019: HK$593.4
million). During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group
completed 18 projects and was awarded 18 projects, 17 of which
were fitting-out projects and one was an A&A project.

As the business of the Group is project-based, profitability of the
Group is dependent on a consistent stream of tendering
opportunities.

Upon converting these tendering opportunities to secured
contracts, the importance of a stringent project management
system becomes paramount so that costs can be controlled,
income can be secured and positive cash flow can be maintained.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERBE

From a risk perspective, a high level of importance is placed on our
tendering strategies, our prudent execution of the works and the
diligent monitoring and control of the commercial aspects of our
projects.

General Overview

Hong Kong and Macau have become increasingly impacted by a
trifecta of negative news.

The year started with increasing hostility between the USA and
China and the imposing of trading tariffs. This hostility has
continued and intensified and unfortunately, there is no end in sight
to this situation.

In July 2019, social unrest in Hong Kong became the mainstay of
the news, triggered by the attempted implementation of an
extradition law. As a result, Hong Kong was subjected to six
months of severe disruption to both businesses and the daily lives
of its citizens.

The above two situations were compounded when in January
2020, Hong Kong and the rest of the world became aware of a
new and highly contagious virus. As a result of its previous
experience with the SARS virus, both Hong Kong and Macau were
quick to implement enhanced levels of protection for its citizens,
the result of which was a very successful containment of the virus
and a minimal number of infections/deaths.

Unfortunately, other countries around the world did not react
quickly and the virus has moved rapidly amongst their populations
resulting in high levels of infections, overwhelmed health services
and ultimately, large numbers of deaths. The resulting locking down
of entire countries internally and externally has decimated
businesses and severely disrupted normal global business
practices.

Operating in an environment suffering from such severe disruption
is challenging however both the Company and its senior
management have been through similar challenges in the past and
are well qualified to guide the Company through these tough times.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EEHRE

MARKET REVIEW
Hong Kong

For the best part of the year ended 31 March 2020, both the fitting-
out and A&A markets have been extremely active. The number of
tendering opportunities has been high and the Group has
performed well in securing high quality projects with quality clients.

Towards the end of the financial year and as the impact of the trade
war, the social unrest and the pandemic intensified, we have
experienced a reduced number of tendering opportunities and an
increased level of competition for each project. This financial period
for 31 March 2021 will be challenging and it will be essential for the
Group to closely analyse every tender submission, to remain
competitive and to maximise our chances of winning work.

Irrespective of the above, as a result of Hong Kong’s prompt and
consistent response to the virus, society is quickly returning to
normal and we are confident that the construction industry will
follow.

Macau

For the year ended 31 March 2020, our Macau team performed
well.

We were fortunate to secure a number of projects during the year
which included the building of a large high-end Japanese dining
space for one of Macau’s premier Hotel and Casino operators.

Unfortunately, the impact of the virus pandemic has been harsh on
this territory. Macau is heavily reliant on tourism and with the
pandemic shutting down almost all travel both domestically and
internationally, the hotels and casinos have been starved of visitors.

Spending by the hotel and casino groups has reduced significantly
and as a result, there are limited tenders for potential projects. As
we have done in the past, basic costs have been reduced to a
minimum and we will patiently wait for market conditions to
improve.

12 IBI Group Holdings Limited
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERBE

Moving Forward
Hong Kong

As a result of the tendering successes we achieved in early 2020,
our project teams have been kept busy completing projects into
the new financial year. This has given us a significant buffer against
the deteriorating environment.

We are also fortunate that despite the reduced number of tenders,
we have already secured new work, including an international bank
and, an international school organisation.

Moving forward, we will continue to reduce our cost base to a
minimum and to maintain efficient methods of managing teams and
procuring goods and services. We are confident that the situation
will improve as countries begin to open up again and ultimately,
when a vaccine is successfully found and distributed world-wide.

Macau

As the market in Macau has been seriously impacted, we do not
anticipate a significant improvement in the market until the border
with the PRC is re-opened. Until this happens, we will continue to
operate on a skeleton basis and at the same time, let our major
clients know that we are still able to tender for any opportunity.

We will spread our marketing efforts beyond the hotel and casino
industry in order to maximise our opportunities and to secure a
range of projects outside of this core focus. We hope this will
enable us to smooth out the more volatile nature of the hotel and
casino work and to provide more consistent results moving
forward.

New Ventures

| am pleased to announce that subsequent to the year end, the
Company has formed a new division specializing in the provision of
construction and building related products. The new entity will be
known as Building Solutions Limited (“BSL”).

We have been fortunate to secure the services of JS Gan to head
up this division. Mr. Gan is a well-known industry professional who
has spent over 12 years successfully developing supply chains in
Asia and we fully believe his experience and reputation will be a
significant factor in the success of the new division.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EEHRE

The primary mission of BSL is to secure high quality and innovative
products and materials from overseas for distribution throughout
Asia and although BSL is early in its development, | look forward to
reporting positively on its progress in the coming months.

APPRECIATION

Our staff have endured a great deal over the last eight months as a
result of the on-going political and virus related issues. At every
stage however they have been practical in their approach as well as
tolerant and patient of the actions that the company has taken in
order to manage these difficult times.

| would like to take this opportunity to thank every member of the
IBI team for their calmness, their tenacity and their support and also
to give them assurance that things will get better and life will soon
return to normal.

On behalf of the Board

Neil David Howard
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 June 2020
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEER W& DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group is a building contractor focusing on providing renovation
services as a main contractor for property projects in the private
sector in Hong Kong and Macau. Our two main types of projects

are (i) fitting-out projects; and (i) A&A projects.

Revenue by geographical location of projects

5t 755 [

Wz

AEBESFINEHBFRBHELERER - EEEE
FORFPIRLE B Y IR B AR - BRI AEIR

BANFEBEE  R(i)AKAIER °

#IE B 1 % &7 B Wi

Year ended 31 March
BZE=A=1+—HILEE

2020 2019
—EEHF —E-NF
% of % of
HK$’000 revenue HK$’ 000 revenue
15 U 2 Uz
TET Bo FAET Bt
Hong Kong &5 538,347 91.1% 575,388 97.0%
Macau SR P 52,782 8.9% 18,060 3.0%
Total et 591,129 100.0% 593,448 100.0%
Revenue by type of projects HIEEEEE 7MW
Year ended 31 March
BE=RA=t+—HLEFE
2020 2019
—E-EH —ZT-NF
% of % of
HK$’000 revenue HK$’000 revenue
15 U 2= Uz
TFET Bo FAT Btk
Fitting-out projects HE1EH 567,067 95.9% 479,928 80.9%
A&A projects AATE H 24,062 4.1% 113,520 19.1%
Total et 591,129 100.0% 593,448 100.0%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWR DT

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Revenue (Continued)
Revenue by type of projects (Continued)

The Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 March 2020 was
approximately HK$591.1 million, which represented a decrease of
approximately HK$2.3 million or approximately 0.4% over the last
financial year. The slight decrease in the Group’s revenue was
mainly due to a temporary suspension of several construction sites
in Hong Kong during February and March 2020 as a consequence
of the Coronavirus outbreak (“COVID-19"), the revenue
contribution from Hong Kong decreased by approximately HK$37.0
million or 6.4% over the last financial year. This decrease was
partially offset by an increased revenue contribution from Macau
which generated an additional revenue of approximately HK$34.7
million for the year ended 31 March 2020.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The Group’s gross profit remained stable and slightly increased by
approximately HK$0.1 million or 0.3% from approximately HK$51.7
million for the year ended 31 March 2019 to approximately
HK$51.9 million for the year ended 31 March 2020. Accordingly,
the Group’s gross profit margin for the year ended 31 March 2020
increased to approximately 8.8% from approximately 8.7% for the
year ended 31 March 2019.

Administrative and other operating expenses

The Group’s administrative and other operating expenses for the
year ended 31 March 2020 were approximately HK$27.4 million,
representing a decrease of approximately HK$0.4 million or 1.3%
from approximately HK$27.8 million for the last financial year. The
decrease was mainly due to overall effective cost control during the
year ended 31 March 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEE WX DT

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Income tax expense

The Group’s operations are based in Hong Kong and Macau, and
are subject to (i) Hong Kong profits tax calculated at 8.25% for the
first HK$2 million and 16.5% on the remaining balance of estimated
assessable profits during the reporting period; and (ii) Macau
complementary tax calculated at 12.0% on the taxable profits over
the relevant tax threshold during the reporting period.

For the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group recorded income
tax expense of approximately HK$3.7 million (2019: HK$3.9 million)
representing an effective tax rate of approximately 14.5% (2019:
15.8%). The decrease in the Group’s effective tax rate during the
current financial year was mainly due to the increase in non-taxable
income and the utilisation of tax loss brought forward for Macau.

Profit for the year

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 March 2020 amounted to
approximately HK$21.6 million, representing an increase of
approximately HK$0.8 million or approximately 3.7% from
approximately HK$20.9 million for the year ended 31 March 2019.
Such increase was mainly attributable to reduction in administrative
and other operating expenses as mentioned above.

Bank borrowings

As at 31 March 2020 and 2019, the Group had no bank
borrowings. No financial instruments were used for hedging
purposes, nor were there any foreign currency net investments
hedged by current borrowings and/or other hedging instruments.

Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had current assets of
approximately HK$381.2 million (2019: HK$356.5 million) which
comprised cash and cash equivalents of approximately HK$195.7
million (2019: HK$109.4 million), mainly denominated in Hong Kong
dollars. As at 31 March 2020, the Group had non-current liabilities
of approximately HK$3.1 million (2019: nil), and its current liabilities
amounted to approximately HK$261.1 million (2019: HK$223.4
million), consisting mainly of payables arising in the normal course
of business operation. Accordingly, the current ratio, being the ratio
of current assets to current liabilities, was approximately 1.5 times
as at 31 March 2020 (2019: 1.6 times). The Group’s working
capital requirements were mainly financed by internal resources.

18 IBI Group Holdings Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEBNWR DN

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Gearing ratio

The gearing ratio of the Group is defined as a percentage of total
debts at the end of the reporting period divided by total equity at
the end of the reporting period. As at 31 March 2020, the gearing
ratio is 4.1% (2019: nil). Total debts include lease liabilities.

Treasury policies

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management approach
towards its treasury policies and thus maintained a healthy liquidity
position throughout the period under review. The Group strives to
reduce exposure to credit risk by performing ongoing credit
assessments and evaluations of the financial status of its
customers. To manage liquidity risk, the Board closely monitors the
Group’s liquidity position to ensure that the liquidity structure of the
Group’s assets, liabilities and other commitments can meet its
funding requirements from time to time.

Foreign exchange exposure

As at 31 March 2020, the Group’s exposure to currency risks is
mainly attributable to certain listed equity investments included in
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, which are
denominated in Australian Dollar and British Pound. The Group was
exposed to certain foreign currency exchange risks but it does not
anticipate future currency fluctuations to cause material operational
difficulties or liquidity problems.

Save as disclosed above, the Group’s monetary assets and
transactions are principally denominated in Hong Kong dollars, it
did not have any significant exposure to risk resulting from changes
in foreign currency exchange rates during the year ended 31 March
2020.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group did not engage
in any derivatives activities and did not commit to any financial
instruments to hedge its exposure to foreign currency risk.

Capital structure

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange on 14 October 2016 (the “Listing Date”). There
has been no change in the capital structure of the Company since
the Listing Date and up to the date of this report. The capital of the
Company comprises ordinary shares and capital reserves.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Capital commitments

As at 31 March 2020, the Group did not have any significant capital
commitments (2019: nil).

Share Option Scheme

The Company conditionally approved and adopted the Share
Option Scheme on 20 September 2016 by passing of a written
resolution of the then shareholders of the Company. The Share
Option Scheme became effective on the Listing Date and will
remain in force until the tenth anniversary of the Listing Date.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide the
Company a flexible means of giving incentive to, rewarding,
remunerating, compensating and providing benefits to eligible
participants and for such other purposes as the Board approves
from time to time.

Since the adoption of the Share Option Scheme and up to the date
of this report, no option was granted, exercised, cancelled or
lapsed under the Share Option Scheme.

Significant investments held

As at 31 March 2020, except for the listed equity investments
included in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of
approximately HK$12.6 million (2019: nil), there was no other
significant investment held by the Group.

Future plans for material investments and capital assets

The Group did not have other plans for material investments and
capital assets as at 31 March 2020.

Material acquisitions and disposals
During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group did not have any

material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWR DT

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Pledge of assets

As at 31 March 2020, pledged deposits in the sum of
approximately HK$16.1 million (2019: HK$16.2 million) were placed
with a bank or an insurer as securities for the performance bonds
issued by the bank and insurer to certain customers on their
projects. The pledged deposits will be released when the bank or
insurer is satisfied that no claims will arise from the projects under
the performance bonds.

Contingent liabilities

The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31 March
2020 (2019: nil).

Information on employees

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had 109 employees (2019: 105),
including the executive Directors. Total staff costs (including
Directors’ emoluments) were approximately HK$71.3 million for the
year ended 31 March 2020, as compared with approximately
HK$61.4 million for the year ended 31 March 2019. Remuneration
is determined with reference to market norms and individual
employee’s performance, qualification and experience.

On top of basic salaries, bonuses may be paid by reference to the
Group’s performance as well as individual’s performance. Other
staff benefits include contributions to Mandatory Provident Fund
scheme in Hong Kong and various welfare plans including the
provision of pension funds, medical insurance, unemployment
insurance and other relevant insurance for employees of our Group.

The salaries and benefits of the Group’s employees are kept at a
competitive level and employees are rewarded on a performance-
related basis within the general framework of the Group’s salary
and bonus system, which is reviewed by management annually.
The Group also operates the Share Option Scheme, pursuant to
which options to subscribe for shares of the Company may be
granted to the Directors and employees of the Group.

The Group encourages self-development of its employees and
provides on-the-job training where appropriate.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

The outbreak of COVID-19 in early January 2020 has heavily
impacted the global business environment. Up to the date of this
report, COVID-19 has not unduly affected the business of the
Group however moving forward, the negative business environment
will undoubtedly impact the Group’s ability to secure projects. The
Group will remain vigilant moving forward and move fast to counter
the impact of COVID-19 wherever possible and to look at all ways
in which the Group can maneuver its way through these challenging
times.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2020, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company confirms that, other than the deviation from code
provision A.2.1, the Company has complied with all the code
provisions (“Code Provisions”) set out in the Corporate
Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules
throughout the year ended 31 March 2020.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENEAREEEGE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors
Mr. Neil David Howard

Mr. Howard, aged 49, was appointed as a Director on 13 April
2016 and redesignated as an executive Director, the chairman of
our Board and chief executive officer on 11 June 2016. Mr. Howard
is a director of each of our subsidiaries. He is the chairman of the
Nomination Committee, and a member of the Remuneration
Committee. He is responsible for corporate strategic planning and
overall business development of our Group. Mr. Howard’s interest
in the Shares are set out in the section headed “Directors’ and the
Chief Executive’s Interests or Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures” of the directors’ report in this annual
report.

Mr. Howard has been with our Group for over 13 years since
joining our Group as a director of IBI Limited in November 2006
and a managing director of IBI Macau since August 2007.

Prior to joining our Group in November 2006, Mr. Howard was the
regional operations director at a company currently known as
Global Beauty International Management Limited (principally
engaged in health and lifestyle services) from July 2002 to March
2005 where he was primarily responsible for upgrading the
company’s portfolio of treatment centres throughout the Asia
region.

Mr. Howard graduated from University of the West of England,
Bristol in the United Kingdom with a bachelor’s degree of science
in quantity surveying in July 1993. Mr. Howard then completed a
course in advanced insolvency law and practice 1 from The
University of Southern Queensland in Australia in July 2000. He also
obtained a diploma in insolvency from the Hong Kong Society of
Accountants (currently known as Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants) in Hong Kong in November 2001.
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Mr. Steven Paul Smithers

Mr. Smithers, aged 52, was appointed as a Director on 13 April
2016 and redesignated as an executive Director and the chief
operations officer on 11 June 2016. Mr. Smithers is a director of
each of our subsidiaries. He is a member of the Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee. He is responsible for
corporate strategic planning, overall business development,
management and operations of our Group. Mr. Smithers’ interest in
the Shares are set out in the section headed “Directors’ and the
Chief Executive’s Interests or Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures” of the Directors’ Report in this annual
report.

Mr. Smithers has over 25 years of working experience in the
construction industry in Hong Kong. Prior to joining our Group in
May 2006 as a senior project manager, he was last employed as a
compliance and co-ordination manager at group companies under
Paul Y. group (which was principally engaged in construction
services) from March 1996 to April 2006 and he was primarily
responsible for managing the tender and pre-qualification process
and general management activities. From October 1994 to
February 1996, Mr. Smithers worked as a quality assurance
consultant at Construction Quality Management Ltd. (principally
engaged in ISO accredited management systems), where he was
seconded to Paul Y. group.

Mr. Smithers graduated from Brighton Polytechnic (currently known
as the University of Brighton) in the United Kingdom with a
bachelor’s degree of science in building engineering and
management in July 1991. Mr. Smithers then obtained a master’s
degree of business administration from University of Leicester in the
United Kingdom in July 1998. Mr. Smithers was admitted as a
member and a fellow of the Chartered Institute of Building in the
United Kingdom in August 1997 and June 2014, respectively. He
was also admitted as a member of the Institute of Management in
the United Kingdom in May 1998.
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Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Richard Gareth Williams

Mr. Williams, aged 72, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 20 September 2016. He is responsible for
providing independent advice to our Board. He is a member of
each of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee. Mr. Williams has over 43 years of
experience in the areas of property valuation and estate agency.
Mr. Williams is the principal of Gareth Williams & Associates
(principally engaged in property valuation and estate agency) where
he is primarily responsible for specialist property valuations and
acquisitions and disposal of investment properties since January
2006. Additionally, he is currently an independent non-executive
director of Wharf Real Estate Investment Company Limited (Stock
Code: 1997) (principally engaged in property services in Hong
Kong).

Mr. Williams was a property investment director of Wheelock
Properties (Hong Kong) Limited from October 2004 to July 2006
where he was responsible for property services. From June 2002
to September 2004, he worked as the chief executive in the Hong
Kong office of Knight Frank Asia Pacific Pte. Ltd. (principally
engaged in providing property related services) where he was
responsible for the overall management. From May 1979 to June
2002, Mr. Williams worked for Vigers Hong Kong Limited (principally
engaged in valuation, property consultancy and estate agency) with
his last position as the chairman and chief executive officer where
he was primarily responsible for provision of property valuation and
estate agency services. From May 1976 to April 1979, Mr. Wiliams
served as rating and valuation surveyor at the Rating and Valuation
Department of the Hong Kong Government.

Mr. Williams was certified as a Fellow of the Royal Institution of
Chartered Surveyors in the United Kingdom and was elected as a
Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors in June 1984 and
December 1984, respectively. Additionally, he was also admitted as
a member of the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators and a practising
member of The Academy of Experts, both based in the United
Kingdom, in December 1999 and April 2009, respectively.
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Mr. Robert Peter Andrews

Mr. Andrews, aged 62, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 20 September 2016. He is responsible for
providing independent advice to our Board. He is the chairman of
the Remuneration Committee, and a member of the Nomination
Committee and Audit Committee. Mr. Andrews has over 29 years
of experience in the construction industry. Mr. Andrews is the
director of Andrews Commercial Services Limited (principally
engaged in consultancy services in the construction industry) since
April 2013.

Mr. Andrews worked at Leighton Contractors (Asia) Limited
(principally engaged in construction) from January 1990 to March
2013, with his last position as the divisional commercial manager of
Hong Kong and Macau, where he was primarily responsible for
overseeing contractual and commercial aspect of the business unit.

Mr. Andrews obtained his diploma in quantity surveying from
Cauldon College (currently known as Stoke On Trent College) in the
United Kingdom in June 1979. He then obtained a certificate of
commercial mediation conducted by The Accord Group Australia in
association with the Mediation Council of the Hong Kong
International Arbitration Centre in Hong Kong in December 1998.

Mr. David John Kennedy

Mr. Kennedy, aged 51, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 30 June 2019. He is responsible for providing
independent advice to our Board. He is the chairman of the Audit
Committee, and a member of the Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee. Mr. Kennedy was the chief financial officer
and the chief operating officer of M.S. Asia Group from 2012 until
2019. He is now a consultant at Hart Giles, Solicitors and Notaries.

Mr. Kennedy was the chief operating officer and the chief executive
officer of Equititrust Limited between 2009 and 2011, the chief
operating officer of Octaviar Limited (formerly known as MFS
Limited) between 2007 and 2008, a senior manager, a partner and
the chief operating officer of RSM Hong Kong between 1997 and
2005, and a part-time lecturer in bankruptcy of Griffith University in
Australia between 1995 and 1996. He also worked for KPMG
between 1988 and 1996 with his last position being a manager.
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Mr. Kennedy obtained a degree of Master of Laws, a Bachelor’s
Degree in Laws and a Bachelor’s Degree in Business Accounting
from Queensland University of Technology in 2009, 2003 and
1989, respectively. He has been admitted as a solicitor in Hong
Kong since 2018, a solicitor in Queensland, Australia since 2006
and a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia
(currently known as Chartered Accountants Australia and New
Zealand) since 1994,

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Mr. Kwan John Lau

Mr. Lau, aged 52, first joined our Group in June 2001, and is
currently the tendering director of our Group. He is responsible for
overseeing tenders and recruitment of project-related staff.

Mr. Lau has over 25 years of working experience in the areas of
property development and fitting-out. Prior to joining our Group, he
worked as a project manager for L.P. Contractors & Construction
Co., (H.K) Ltd. (principally engaged in interior decoration business)
from July 1998 to June 2001 where he was primarily responsible
for the overall management of the company. From July 1996 to
July 1998, he worked as a project manager at Global Top Design &
Engineering Ltd. (principally engaged in interior fitting-out business)
where he was primarily responsible for fitting-out project
management. From August 1992 to April 1994, Mr. Lau worked as
the site supervisor at Interior Contract International Limited
(principally engaged in fitting-out, decoration and contracting)
where he was primarily responsible for fitting-out project
management.

Mr. Lau graduated with a bachelor’s degree of engineering in
industrial and civil engineering from Hunan University in the PRC in
July 1990. He then graduated with a master’s degree of science in
facility management from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in
Hong Kong in December 2005.
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Mr. Siu Hong Lui

Mr. Lui, aged 45, first joined our Group in September 2005, and is
currently the regional director of our Group. He is responsible for
overseeing the Macau operations of our Group.

Mr. Lui has over 19 years of working experience in the construction
industry. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Lui worked as a quantity
surveyor for Paul Y. Construction Company, Limited from May
2001 to February 2005. He worked as an assistant quantity
surveyor in Gammon Construction Limited and Kier Hong Kong
Limited (both principally engaged in civil construction works) from
June 2000 to November 2000 and from August 1998 to July 1999,
respectively. Mr. Lui worked at Universal Dockyard, Limited with his
last position as the assistant quantity surveyor (principally engaged
in marine and civil construction works) from October 1994 to May
1996 where he was primarily responsible for project budget
planning and project subcontracting.

Mr. Lui was awarded a certificate in building studies from the
Vocational Training Council for completing a course at Morrison Hill
Technical Institute (currently known as the Hong Kong Institute of
Vocational Education (Morrison Hill)) in Hong Kong in July 1997. He
then obtained a higher diploma in building and construction from
City University of Hong Kong in Hong Kong in November 2000.
Subsequently, Mr. Lui graduated with a bachelor’s degree of
science in construction management from University of
Wolverhampton in the United Kingdom in October 2005, before
attaining a master’s degree of science in construction law and
dispute resolution from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in
Hong Kong in October 2008.
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Mr. Wai Fung Kong

Mr. Kong, aged 44, first joined our Group in December 2009, and
is currently the commercial director of our Group. He is responsible
for overseeing the commercial department of our Group.

Mr. Kong has over 17 years of working experience in the field of
quantity surveying. He worked as a project quantity surveyor for
Chun Wo Construction and Engineering Company Limited,
principally engaged in construction, from May 2009 to November
2009. Mr. Kong worked as a quantity surveying consultant for
Rick’s Management Consultancy Limited (principally engaged in
quantity surveying consultancy services) from October 2006 to
March 2009. Mr. Kong worked as a project quantity surveyor for
New House Construction Co., Ltd, principally engaged in
construction services, from June 2005 to September 2006. He
worked as an assistant quantity surveyor at D. G. Jones & Partners
(H.K.) Ltd. and then as a quantity surveyor at Northcroft Hong Kong
Ltd., both principally engaged in construction consultancy services,
from July 2001 to April 2002 and from July 2002 to August 2004,
respectively.

Mr. Kong graduated with a bachelor’s degree of science in quantity
surveying and a master’s degree of engineering in building
engineering from City University of Hong Kong in Hong Kong in
November 2001. He was elected as a professional member of the
Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors and was certified as a
registered professional surveyor in the quantity surveying division
by the Surveyors Registration Board in February 2010 and April
2013, respectively.

Ms. Wai Che Rosanna Chu

Ms. Chu, aged 58, first joined our Group in December 2003, and is
currently the chief financial officer of our Group. She is responsible
for overseeing the financial and accounting functions of our Group.

Ms. Chu has over 28 years of working experience in the field of
accounting. Prior to joining our Group, from July 2002 to June
2003, Ms. Chu worked as a senior manager in the finance
department of PricewaterhouseCoopers. From April 1996 to June
2002, she worked as a manager in the finance department of
Arthur Andersen & Co. From September 1990 to March 1996, she
was employed by Ernst & Young, with her last position as manager
in the audit department.
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Ms. Chu graduated with a bachelor’s degree of commerce from
The University of Manitoba in Canada in May 1989. She is a
member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
certified in July 1995, and an associate of the Hong Kong Society
of Accountants (currently known as Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants) certified in December 1995.

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Yun Wah Man

Mr. Man, aged 37, was appointed as the company secretary of our
Company on 11 June 2016. He was the principal and head of
corporate advisory division of Dominic K.F. Chan & Co., and a
director of RHT Corporate Advisory (HK) Ltd.. Mr. Man has over
nine years of experience in corporate services.

Mr. Man is an associate member of The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators and an associate member of The
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries certified in March
2015.

Mr. Man obtained a bachelor’s degree of arts in business
administration and management from University of Huddersfield in
the United Kingdom in March 2010 and a master’s degree of
corporate governance from The Open University of Hong Kong in
Hong Kong in November 2014.
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group are to act as a contractor
focusing on providing renovation services as a main contractor for
property projects in the private sector in Hong Kong and Macau.

BUSINESS REVIEW
General

Further discussion and analysis of the Group’s principal activities as
required by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance, including a
business review of the Group for the year and an indication of likely
future developments in the Group’s business, can be found in the
Management Discussion and Analysis as set out on pages 16 to 22
of this annual report. An analysis of the Group’s performance
during the year ended 31 March 2020 using financial key
performance indicators is provided in the Financial Summary on
page 169 of this annual report. These discussions form part of this
directors’ report.

Principal risks and uncertainties

As the business of the Group is project-based, profitability of the
Group is dependent on a consistent stream of tender opportunities.

Upon converting these tender opportunities to awarded contracts,
the importance of a stringent project management system comes
into play so that costs can be controlled, income can be secured
and positive cashflow can be maintained.

From a risk perspective, a high level of importance is placed on our
tender strategies, our prudent execution of the works and the
diligent monitoring and controlling of the commercial aspects of our
projects.

Further details of the principal risks and uncertainties faced by the
Company are set out in the section headed “Risk Factors” in the
Prospectus.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Environmental policies and performance

The Group is committed to its corporate and social responsibility in
promoting a sustainable and environmentally friendly environment.
We strive to minimise our environmental impact in our daily course
of business. The Group’s in-house guidelines contain measures
and work procedures governing environmental protection
compliance that are required to be followed by the Group’s
employees, suppliers and subcontractors. Such measures and
procedures included air pollution control, noise control and waste
disposal.

Further details of the Group’s environmental policies and
performance are set out in the Environmental Social and
Governance Report of the Company (the “ESG Report”) in this
annual report.

Compliance with laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group

The Group and its business are governed by certain laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Group. To the best
of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief, during the year
ended 31 March 2020, there was no material breach of or non-
compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by the Group.
The Company has complied in material respects with the relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the business
and operation of the Group.

Key relationships with major stakeholders

The Group fully understands that its employees, customers and
suppliers are the key to our sustainable and stable development.
We are committed to establishing a close and stable relationship
with our employees, enhancing cooperation with our suppliers and
providing high-quality construction services to our customers so as
to ensure the Group’s sustainable development.

Employees

Employees are regarded as the most important and valuable assets
of the Group. The Group ensures all staff are reasonably
remunerated and provides them with health and safety and other
developmental training and has proper whistle blowing procedures
in place for our employees to follow without fear of reprisal of
receiving any negative impacts.

32 IBI Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019/2020

Fismo R (&)
BRI R AN

NEERFEITEE RS E TR FE RIRRIR
B BB IRBEEBBRIEERISERENY
2. AEBAABIESIBERERREANE THER
THRERRF VREASENES - HHEBRSBERNA
BT ZEREREFEEERSEAES BEEHIR
REVIIRIE o

BRAAKERERRRRBNE - SHBHNAFRA
MARAIRE - L8 REAMS (ESGHE])

BFHAEBBEREARENERRER

AEBMEEBRETHAEEBREAZENERR
ERFRE - BESZAM - 28X LBE  ARERE
EETFE-_A=+HUIFEYEBERERRKTE
STERARLER - ARBREX T EETHAEE X
BREBEBREAZENRBERLER -

HEXEFHEFEENEERR

AEERABRT EFRHEBERMFERERRED
Rt - RAIBHEBTRYERRTEHE - Mo sH/E
BeERAEFR{EEERERY  NERASERF
BERR -

il

T

A

AEBBREIRREZEREENEE  BERE2BET
FREERM UABTRHBRELRE2LREMERE
Fl - ZRERBBEFEES THAFHRERX D EM

BERE -



DIRECTORS' REPORT
EEERE

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Key relationships with major stakeholders (Continued)
Customers

The Group’s principal customers include a number of highly
reputable organisations and commercial enterprises in the private
sector in Hong Kong and Macau, including multi-national banks,
hotel and casino operators, a racing and betting operator and
property developers. The Group have established stable and long
business relationships with some of our major customers with our
long years of operating history built up a strong business network
of customers and other professional consultants, which has
consistently presented us with business opportunities.

Subcontractors and Suppliers

Our major suppliers include subcontractors and suppliers of
materials. The Group firmly believes that its subcontractors and
suppliers are equally important in cost control and increasing its
bargaining power on procurement of materials, which further
secures its competitiveness when bidding for tenders. The Group
proactively communicates with its subcontractors and suppliers to
ensure they are committed to delivering high-quality and
sustainable products and services. Unless the customers require
the Group to engage subcontractors and suppliers nominated by
them, the Group will select subcontractors and suppliers from its
approved lists of subcontractors and suppliers. In addition, during
the continuance of the contracts with the subcontractors, the
Group will provide them with its internal guidelines on safety and
environmental issues and require them to follow. The Group
effectively implements the subcontractor assessment process to
monitor the performance of its subcontractors by conducting
regular site visits, evaluation on the performance of the contract
and other measures.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

There were no significant events after the reporting period up to the
date of this annual report.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company adopts a dividend policy to allow the Shareholders
to enjoy the sharing of the profits of the Company while retaining
adequate reserves and working capital for future growth and
development. In proposing any dividend pay out, the Board shall
also consider variety factors, including but not limited to the
Group’s actual and expected financial results, financial position of
the Group, expected working capital requirement, future
development/investment plans, general economic conditions,
retained earnings and distributable reserves and any other factors
that the Board considers relevant. The Company does not have
any fixed dividend distribution ratio.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2020 are set
out in the consolidated statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 89 of this report.

The Company has performed well during the financial period and
has improved on its performance of the previous year. In normal
circumstances, the Board would recommend the payment of a final
dividend, especially taking into account the current healthy cash
reserves.

However, in light of the current circumstances with regards to
COVID-19 and the threat of a second wave of infections, the
possibility of an extended period of financial hardship is very real
and therefore the Board believes it would be prudent to refrain from
paying a final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2020 at this
stage and until the economic future becomes more certain.

With the above in mind, the Board does not recommend the
payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2020.

An interim dividend of HK1.0 cent per Share, amounting to HK8.0
million was paid to the Shareholders on 16 January 2020.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the Shareholders’ entitiement to attend and vote at
the 2020 AGM, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from Tuesday, 15 September 2020 to Friday, 18 September
2020 (both days inclusive), during which period no transfer of the
Shares will be registered. In order to qualify for attending and voting
at the 2020 AGM, all transfer documents, accompanied by the
relevant share certificates, must be lodged with the Company’s
Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office, Tricor
Investor Services Limited at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:30
p.m. on Monday, 14 September 2020.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year ended 31 March 2020 are set out in note 23 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year ended 31
March 2020 are set out in the consolidated statements of changes
in equity on page 91 of this annual report and note 24 to the
consolidated financial statements. As at 31 March 2020, the
reserves of the Company available for distribution, as calculated
under the provision of section 79B of the Companies Ordinance,
and in accordance with the Companies Law Cap.22 of Cayman
Islands, was approximately HK$116.8 million inclusive of share
premium and retained earnings.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 March 2020 are set out in note 15
to the consolidated financial statements on page 145 of this annual
report.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last four financial years is set out on page 169 of this
annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year
ended 31 March 2020.

DONATIONS

Donations made by the Group during the year ended 31 March
2020 amounted to HK$44,000.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 March 2020 and up to the
date of this report were:

Name Position

Mr. Neil David Howard Executive Director, chairman,

chief executive officer

Executive Director,
chief operations officer

Mr. Steven Paul Smithers

Mr. Richard Gareth Williams Independent non-executive Director

Mr. Robert Peter Andrews  Independent non-executive Director
Mr. David John Kennedy
(appointed on
30 June 2019)

Independent non-executive Director

Mr. Lap Shek Eddie Wong
(resigned on
30 June 2019)

Independent non-executive Director

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management of
the Company are set out in “Biographies of the Directors and
Senior Management” in this report.

In accordance with the Articles, Mr. Neil David Howard and Mr.
Steven Paul Smithers shall retire by rotation at the 2020 AGM and
they being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICES CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the 2020
AGM has an unexpired service contract which is not determinable
by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without
payment of compensation, other than under normal statutory
obligations.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this report, no transactions, arrangements or
contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year ended 31 March 2020.
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DIRECTORS’ AND THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS OR SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,

UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2020, the Directors and the chief executive had the R ==
following interests in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures A &] -
of the Company, its Group members and/or associated {jl
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the
“SF0”), as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
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Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise EZZDT
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules were as

follows:

The Company

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in

Name of Relevant company the total issued
Director(s)/ Capacity/ (including associated Number share capital
chief executive nature of interest corporation) of Shares' of our Company
RAATE BT
Ex x= il N F 2% 48 B8 R Y
THABES L% £33 (BFEEELE) RAEE BARERD L
Mr. Neil David Howard Interest in controlled Brilliant Blue Sky Limited 393,376,000 Shares 49.17%
(“Mr. Howard")? corporation (“Brilliant Blue Sky”)
Neil David Howard % & RErEERER Brilliant Blue Sky Limited 393,376,000 i A% 17
(THoward &4 )2 ([ Brilliant Blue Sky )
Mr. Howard Beneficial owner N/A 14,544,000 Shares 1.8%
Howard 5t &£ EnEEA ek 14,544,000 Bz 15
Mr. Steven Paul Smithers Interest in controlled Breadnbutter Holdings Limited 174,888,000 Shares 21.86%
(“Mr. Smithers”) corporation (‘Breadnbutter Holdings”)
Steven Paul Smithers 5c 4 ZENEERER Breadnbutter Holdings Limited 174,888,000 f% f% {7
([Smithers %&£ |)° (IBreadnbutter Holdings |)
Mr. Smithers Beneficial owner N/A 9,112,000 Shares 1.14%
Smithers %& 4 EnBEEA TEA 9,112,000 B A& 15
Mr. David John Kennedy Interest of spouse N/A 8,000,000 Shares 1.0%
(“Mr. Kennedy ")
David John Kennedy %t 4 LB s ek 8,000,000 A A& 17
([Kennedy &4 )4
Notes: Mt
(1) All the above Shares are held in long position. (1) UREMBRHHAUTERE °

2 Brilliant Blue Sky, wholly-owned by Mr. Howard, held 393,376,000 (2)
Shares. Mr. Howard is deemed to be interested in the 393,376,000

Shares pursuant to the SFO.

) Breadnbutter Holdings, wholly-owned by Mr. Smithers, held 174,888,000  (3)
Shares. Mr. Smithers is deemed to be interested in the 174,888,000

Shares pursuant to the SFO.

(4) The spouse of Mr. Kennedy held 8,000,000 Shares. Mr. Kennedy is (4)
deemed to be interested in the 8,000,000 Shares pursuant to the SFO.

Howard 45 4 & & % 5 #9 Brilliant Blue Sky 3 5 393,376,000
B B 1 o Howard /e £ 1R 1B B %5 K i & & 6 1 8 B R
393,376,000 &A% {5 ¥ B s ©

Smithers 5t 4 2 & # B K Breadnbutter Holdings #§ &
174,888,000 i A& 1% ° Smithers %t AR I 75 5 I B & (5 AR
AT 174,888,000 BE AR P A #ES ©

Kennedy 5t 4 89 B2 (B35 4 8,000,000 A& A% 17 © 1R i% 75 5 & 28
B {E&H) - Kennedy 5t 4 ¥ 17 & 72 8,000,000 A% B 19 H #E A #

Bk
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2020, so far as was known to the Directors, the
following persons/entities (not being the Director or chief executive)
had, or deemed to have, interests or short positions in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company, its Group members and/or
associated corporations which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO, or which recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under Section 336 of the SFO:
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Approximate

percentage of
shareholding in

the total issued

Number share capital of

Name Capacity/nature of interest of Shares! our Company
RAEABE BT
IR A BEEH I
wE /A8 B REEME ROHE! BARERESHL
Brilliant Blue Sky Beneficial interest 393,376,000 Shares 49.17%
Brilliant Blue Sky B 398,376,000 A% A% {5
Ms. Shuen Jolie Chung Howard? Interest of spouse 407,920,000 Shares 50.99%
)k Ao B s 407,920,000 f% % 17
Breadnbutter Holdings Beneficial interest 174,888,000 Shares 21.86%
Breadnbutter Holdings EnfEn 174,888,000 J& J& 1%
Ms. Yuk Fan Joe Lam?® Interest of spouse 184,000,000 Shares 23.00%
MEHLZ L3 Ao fE i s 184,000,000 %A% 15
Notes: MisE
(1) All the above Shares are held in long position. (1) UEMBRHHAUEFEREE °
2)  Ms. Shuen Jolie Chung Howard, the spouse of Mr. Howard, is deemedto  (2)  $&liE & £ (Howard 5t A 1) B8 ) IR IR 55 55 K A E R HI 1R &=

be interested in the 14,544,000 Shares held by Mr. Howard and the
393,376,000 Shares held by Mr. Howard through his controlled
corporation, Brilliant Blue Sky, pursuant to the SFO.

) Ms. Yuk Fan Joe Lam, the spouse of Mr. Smithers, is deemed to be
interested in the 9,112,000 Shares held by Mr. Smithers and the
174,888,000 Shares held by Mr. Smithers through his controlled
corporation, Breadnbutter Holdings, pursuant to the SFO.

38 IBI Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019/2020

7 Howard %5 4 #3575 9 14,544,000 % B 13 & Howard 5t 4 %
i H 455K E Brilliant Blue Sky #5748 #9 393,376,000 A% & 15
HHERER -

(38)  #REZ 2T (Smithers S AE ML (B ) IRIEFE FH K AT E IKHIAR
/BT Smithers %5 4 35 99,112,000 A% A% 15 & Smithers 5t 4
% 3B H & %% [B Breadnbutter Holdings 5 & #J 174,888,000
B R A o



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year ended 31 March 2020.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year ended 31 March 2020, purchases from the Group’s
largest supplier accounted for approximately 6.1% of the total
purchase cost and the aggregate purchases from its top five
suppliers in aggregate accounted for approximately 20.9% of the
total purchase cost.

Sales to the Group’s largest customer accounted for approximately
18.7% of the total revenue and the aggregate sales to its top five
customers in aggregate accounted for approximately 68.3% of the
total revenue.

None of the Directors, any of their close associates or any
Shareholders (which to the knowledge of our Directors, own more
than 5% of the issued share capital of the Company) had any
interest in any of our five largest suppliers and customers during the
year ended 31 March 2020.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles,
although there are no restrictions against such rights under the
laws in the Cayman Islands.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company conditionally approved and adopted the Share
Option Scheme on 20 September 2016 by passing of a written
resolution of the then shareholders of the Company. The Share
Option Scheme became effective on the Listing Date and will
remain in force until the tenth anniversary of the Listing Date. No
option under the Share Option Scheme had been granted during
the year ended 31 March 2020 and up to the date of this report.

Purpose

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the
Company to grant options to Eligible Participants (as defined below)
as incentives or rewards for their contribution or potential
contribution to the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

Eligible persons

Under the Share Option Scheme, eligible persons include any full-
time or part-time employees, potential employees, executives or
officers (including executive, non-executive and independent non-
executive Directors) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries, and
any suppliers, customers, agents and advisers who, in the sole
opinion of the Board, has contributed or will contribute to the
Company and/or any of its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Eligible
Participants”).

Maximum number of Shares

The maximum number of Shares pursuant to which options may be
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall not exceed
80,000,000 Shares, which represented 10% of the then issued
share capital of the Company as at the Listing Date and the date of
this annual report. This limit may be renewed at any time provided
that the new limit must not exceed 10% of the total number of
Shares in issue as at the date of the Shareholders’ approval for the
renewal.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Share Option
Scheme, the Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of our
Company at any time must not exceed 30% of the Shares in issue
from time to time. No options may be granted under any schemes
of our Company if such grant will result in this 30% limit being
exceeded.

Maximum entitlement of each Eligible Participant

Unless approved by the Shareholders at general meeting, the
maximum entitlerment of each Eligible Participant is that the total
number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
outstanding options granted and to be granted to such Eligible
Participant (including exercised, outstanding and cancelled options)
under the Share Option Scheme and other scheme(s) of the
Company in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the
issued share capital of the Company at the date of grant.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)
Option period

An option may be exercised in whole or in part in accordance with
the terms of the Share Option Scheme, during a period notified or
to be notified by the Board, provided that such period of time does
not exceed 10 years commencing on the date on which the option
is granted.

Minimum period for which an option must be held before
it is exercised

Each grantee under the Share Option Scheme shall be entitled to
exercise his/her option in the manner set out in his/her offer
document. The period within which an option may be exercised
under the Share Option Scheme is determined by the Board at its
absolute discretion, provided that such period is consistent with
any other terms and condition of the Share Option Scheme.

Payment on acceptance of the option

A nominal consideration of HK$1.00 is payable on or before the last
day for acceptance of the option as set out in the offer document.

Basis of determining the subscription price

The subscription price for Shares under the Share Option Schemes
shall be at the absolute discretion of the Board, provided that it is
not less than the highest of (a) the official closing price of the
Shares as stated in daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange
on the offer date; (b) the average of the official closing prices of the
Shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding the
offer date; and (c) the nominal value of a Share.

The remaining life of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme remains in force for 10 years from the
Listing Date and ending on the tenth anniversary of the Listing Date
(both days inclusive), unless otherwise terminated, cancelled or
amended.
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EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) in Hong
Kong under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme. Particulars of the employee
retirement benefits of the Group are set out in note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report and based on the information that is
publicly available to the Company and to the best knowledge of the
Directors, the Company has maintained the minimum public float of
25% as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 have
been audited by BDO Limited who will retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment at the annual general meeting
of the Company. A resolution for the re-appointment of BDO
Limited as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the 2020
AGM. There has been no change in auditor since the Listing Date.

RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE THE COMPANY’S
SECURITIES

At no time during the year ended 31 March 2020 was the
Company, or any of its holding companies or subsidiaries, or any of
its fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors or chief executive of the Company or their respective
associates (as defined under the Listing Rules) to have any right to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debenture of, the Company or any other body corporate.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

During the year ended 31 March 2020, save for the Share Option
Scheme, the Company did not enter into any equity-linked
agreements in respect of Shares.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 March 2020, none of the Directors and
directors of the Company’s subsidiaries, or their respective
associates had interests in businesses, which compete or are likely
to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the
Company and its subsidiaries as required to be disclosed pursuant
to the Listing Rules.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Saved as the related party transactions disclosed in note 27 to the
consolidated financial statements in this report, no Controlling
Shareholder had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in
any contract of significance (whether for the provision of services to
the Company or not) to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year
ended 31 March 2020.

CHANGES IN DIRECTOR’S BIOGRAPHICAL
DETAILS UNDER RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE
LISTING RULES

There has been no other change in Directors’ biographical details
which is required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the
Listing Rules during the year ended 31 March 2020 and up to the
date of this report.
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NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

In order to avoid potential conflicts of interests with our Company,
our Controlling Shareholders, namely Mr. Neil David Howard and
Brilliant Blue Sky Limited, have entered into the Deed, pursuant to
which they have undertaken, among others, not to compete with
the business of the Group. Details of the Deed are set out in the
section headed “Relationship with our Controlling Shareholders —
Deed of Non-competition” in the Prospectus.

Each of the Controlling Shareholders has made a written
confirmation to the Board in respect of their compliance with the
undertakings in the Deed during the year ended 31 March 2020.

Upon receiving the confirmations from the Controlling Shareholders,
the independent non-executive Directors had reviewed the same as
part of the annual review process and confirmed that the
Controlling Shareholders had complied with the Deed during the
year ended 31 March 2020.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Subject to applicable laws, the Directors shall be indemnified and
secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company
from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which they or any of them may incur or sustain by or by
reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the
execution of their duty, or supposed duty, in their respective offices,
pursuant to the Articles. Such provisions were in force throughout
the year ended 31 March 2020 and are currently in force. The
Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for
Directors’ liabilities in respect of legal actions that may be brought
against the Directors.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief on taxation available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holdings of the Shares. If the
Shareholders are unsure about the taxation implications of
purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in, or exercising of any
rights in relation to the Shares, they are advised to consult their
professional advisers.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions undertaken in the ordinary
course of business by the Group during the year ended 31 March
2020 are set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial statements
in this report.

The related party transactions set out in note 27 to the consolidated
financial statements constitute “continuing connected transactions”
(as defined under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules) which are fully
exempted from the disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group had not
conducted any “connected transaction” or “continuing connected
transaction” (as defined under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules)
which is subject to reporting and annual review requirements under
the Listing Rules.

All references above to other sections, reports or notes in this
annual report form part of this report.

On behalf of the Board
Neil David Howard
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 June 2020
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The Company is committed to fulfilling its responsibilities to the
Shareholders and protecting and enhancing Shareholder value
through good corporate governance. The Company has developed
and implemented sound governance policies and measures, and
the Board is responsible for performing such corporate governance
duties. The Board will continue to review and monitor the corporate
governance of the Company with reference to the CG Code so as
to maintain a high standard of corporate governance of the
Company.

The Company confirms that, other than the deviation from Code
Provision A.2.1, the Company has complied with all the Code
Provisions throughout the year ended 31 March 2020.

Our Company complies with all the Code Provisions with the
exception of Code Provision A.2.1, which requires the roles of
chairman and chief executive be different individuals. Under Code
Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and chief
executive should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. Mr. Neil David Howard holds both positions. Mr.
Howard has been primarily responsible for overseeing our Group’s
general management and business development and for
formulating business strategies and policies for our business
management and operations since he joined our Group in 2006.
Taking into account the continuation of management and the
implementation of our business strategies, our Directors (including
our independent non-executive Directors) consider it is most
suitable for Mr. Howard to hold both the positions of chief executive
officer and the chairman of our Board and the present
arrangements are beneficial to and in the interests of our Company
and our Shareholders as a whole. Our Company will continue to
review and consider splitting the roles of chairman of the Board and
chief executive officer of our Company at a time when it is
appropriate and suitable by taking into account the circumstances
of our Group as a whole.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Responsibilities

The Board is charged with promoting the success of the Company
by directing and supervising its affairs. The Board has general
powers for the management and conduct of the Company’s
business. The day-to-day operations and management are
delegated by the Board to the management of the Company, who
will implement the strategy and direction as determined by the
Board.

Composition

The Company is committed to the view that the Board should
include a balanced composition of executive and independent non-
executive Directors so that the Board has a strong independent
element, which can effectively exercise independent judgement.

Currently, the Board comprises two executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors:

The Composition of the Board during the year ended 31 March
2020 and up to the date of this annual report is as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Neil David Howard (Chairman and chief executive officer)
Mr. Steven Paul Smithers

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Richard Gareth Williams

Mr. Robert Peter Andrews

Mr. David John Kennedy!"
(appointed on 30 June 2019)

Mr. Lap Shek Eddie Wong®
(resigned on 30 June 2019)

1 Mr. David John Kennedy was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director, a chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the
Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee on 30 June 2019.

2 Mr. Lap Shek Eddie Wong resigned as an independent non-executive
Director, a chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the
Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee on 30 June 2019
as he would like to devote more time to his career commitments.

The biographical details of each of the Directors are set out in the
section headed “Biographies of Directors and Senior Management”
of this report.
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Responsibilities of executive Directors

The executive Directors are responsible for the leadership and
control of the Company and overseeing the Group’s businesses
development, strategic formulation and are collectively responsible
for promoting the success of the Company by directing and
supervising its affairs.

Responsibilities of independent non-executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors participate in the Board
meetings to bring in an independent judgment to bear on the issues
of strategy, policy, performance, accountability, resources, key
appointments and standards of conducts and scrutinise the
Company’s performance in achieving agreed corporate goals and
objectives. They are also responsible for ensuring a high standard
of financial and other mandatory reporting of the Board as well as
providing a balance in the Board in order to effectively exercise an
independent judgment on the corporate actions of the Company so
as to protect Shareholders’ interest and the overall interest of the
Group.

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2020, the Company had
three independent non-executive Directors, which met the
requirements of the Listing Rules that the number of independent
non-executive Directors must represent at least one-third of the
Board and should not be less than three, and that at least one of
the independent non-executive Directors has appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has made an
annual confirmation of independence in writing pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Board is satisfied that all the
independent non-executive Directors have been independent and
met the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules during the year ended 31 March 2020 and up to the date of
this report.

Term of Directors

Each of the Directors has been appointed for an initial term of three
years commencing from their respective dates and shall continue
thereafter until it is terminated by either party by giving at least three
months’ prior notice in writing or otherwise in accordance with the
terms and conditions of the service contract and letter of
appointment entered between each of the Directors and the
Company.
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Remuneration

Our Directors and our senior management receive remuneration in
the form of salaries, allowances and other benefits, including our
contribution on defined contribution retirement plans.

The aggregate amount of remuneration (including salaries,
allowances, discretionary bonuses, other benefits and contributions
to pension schemes) paid or payable to our Directors for the year
ended 31 March 2020 was approximately HK$8.5 million.

The remuneration of the Directors is determined with reference to
salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities of the Directors and performance of the Group.
Details of the remuneration of the Directors and senior management
for the year ended 31 March 2020 are set out in note 12 to the
consolidated financial statements. In addition, pursuant to Code
Provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual remuneration of
members of the senior management by band for the year ended 31
March 2020 is set out below:
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Remuneration of the senior management by bands B BI85 B B AR E B B
Number of
senior
management
=&
EEHE AR
Nil-HK$ 1,000,000 £ 2 1,000,00078 7T -
HK$1,000,001-HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 & 7T 2 1,500,000 78 7T 1
HK$1,500,001-HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 /& 7T & 2,000,000 /5 7T -
HK$2,000,001-HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 & 7T & 2,500,000 7% 7T 3

Save as disclosed in this report, (i) no remuneration was paid to our
Directors or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to
join, or upon joining, our Group; (i) Nno compensation was paid to,
or receivable by, our Directors or past Directors or the five highest
paid individuals during the year ended 31 March 2020 for the loss
of office as director of any member of our Group or of any other
office in connection with the management of the affairs of any
member of our Group; and (i) none of our Directors waived any
emoluments during the same period.

Save as disclosed in this report, no Director or none of the five
highest paid individuals has been paid in cash or shares or
otherwise by any person either to induce him to become, or to
qualify him as a Director, or otherwise for service rendered by him
in connection with the promotion or formation of us.
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Directors’ induction and continuing professional
development

Each of the Directors, namely, Mr. Neil David Howard, Mr. Steven
Paul Smithers, Mr. Richard Gareth Williams, Mr. Robert Peter
Andrews and Mr. David John Kennedy (appointed on 30 June
2019) had participated in continuous professional development
during the year ended 31 March 2020 by reading materials relating
to duties and responsibilities of directors of a listed company in
Hong Kong, the Listing Rules and other applicable laws and
regulations. The Company arranges suitable training for all Directors
in order to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills as part of
their continuous professional development.

Meetings of Board and Board committees and Directors’
attendance records

Notice of regular Board meetings is served on all the Directors at
least 14 days before the meeting. For other Board and Board
committee meetings, reasonable notice is generally given.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information are sent to all Directors at least three days before each
Board or Board committee meeting to keep Directors apprised of
the latest developments and financial position of the Company and
to enable them to make informed decisions. The Board and each
Director also have separate and independent access to the Senior
Management of the Company where necessary.

The minutes of Board and Board committee meetings are kept by
the company secretary and are open for inspection by any Director.
The minutes of Board and Board committee meetings record in
sufficient detail the matters considered and decisions reached,
including any concerns raised by Directors or dissenting views
expressed. Draft and final versions of minutes are sent to all
Directors for their comment and records respectively, within a
reasonable time after the meetings are held.
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During the year ended 31 March 2020, one general meeting was
held while four Board meetings were held whereat the Board,
among others, (i) reviewed and approved the financial results for
the year ended 31 March 2019; (ii) reviewed and approved the
financial results for the six months ended 30 September 2019; (iii)
considered and approved the overall strategies and policies of the
Group; and (iv) considered and approved the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and the Senior
Management. The attendance of individual Directors at the general
meeting and Board meetings is set out in the following table:

BE_TTF=-"A=1+—HILFE  AQFET X
BRAEG MEFSQUEBETHAEESERNA(ETE
B EARMERZE _T-NF=ZA=+—HILFE
MG ERE  (VBHEREBE—_T-NFNALA=TH
IE7NB A RIS 548 (i) Z BRI AR S BB REE K
BE: RivERRILEBNATEELRSREEEDN
HENEE o B EEHERRRGREESSHEMLH
R

Attended/
Eligible to attend
BHE AEREUE

2019
Annual Board
General Meeting Meetings

—E-hF
Name of Directors EEpE BREBEAE ExgEea
Mr. Neil David Howard Neil David Howard 5t 4 11 4/4
Mr. Steven Paul Smithers Steven Paul Smithers 5t 4 11 4/4
Mr. Richard Gareth Williams Richard Gareth Williams %4 11 4/4
Mr. Robert Peter Andrews Robert Peter Andrews %c 4 11 4/4

Mr. David John Kennedy David John Kennedy % 4

(appointed on 30 June 2019) (RZE-NFAA=THEZT) 0/1 3/3

Mr. Lap Shek Eddie Wong FaAEE

(resigned on 30 June 2019)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
Code Provision D.3.1 of the CG Code. The Board reviewed the
Company’s corporate governance policies and practices, training
and continuous professional development of Directors and Senior
Management, the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the
Model Code and written employee guidelines, and the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this corporate
governance report.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company has three board committees, namely the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee. Each of the Board committees operates under its
terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Board committees
are available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

Audit committee

We have established our Audit Committee in compliance with Rule
3.21 of the Listing Rules on 20 September 2016. Our Audit
Committee consists of three members, namely Mr. David John
Kennedy (Chairman), Mr. Richard Gareth Williams and Mr. Robert
Peter Andrews.

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee include:

° making recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor, approving
the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external
auditor, and considering any questions of resignation or
dismissal of that auditor;

° reviewing and monitoring the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards;

° developing and implementing a policy on the engagement of
an external auditor to supply non-audit services and reporting
the same to the Board, and identifying and making
recommendations on any matters in respect of which it
considers that action or improvement is needed;

° discussing with the external auditor before the audit
commences, the nature and scope of the audit and reporting
obligations, and ensuring proper co-ordination where more
than one audit firm is involved;

° discussing problems and reservations arising from the interim
and final audits, and any matters the external auditor may
wish to discuss (in the absence of the Senior Management
where necessary);
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monitoring the integrity of the Company’s financial statements,
annual report and accounts, half-year report and, if prepared
for publication, quarterly reports, and reviewing significant
financial reporting judgements contained in them;

reviewing the Company’s financial controls, risk management
and internal control systems;

discussing the risk management and internal control systems
with the Senior Management to ensure that the Senior
Management has performed its duties in establishing and
maintaining effective systems, including matters on adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting function;

considering major investigations findings on risk management
and internal control matters as delegated by the Board or on
its own initiative and the Senior Management’s response to
these findings;

where an internal audit function exists, ensuring co-ordination
between the internal and external auditors, ensuring that the
internal audit function is adequately resourced and has
appropriate standing within the Company, and reviewing and
monitoring its effectiveness;

reviewing the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

reviewing the external auditor’'s management letter, any
material queries raised by such auditor to the Senior
Management about the accounting records, financial
accounts or systems of control and the Senior Management’s
response;

ensuring that the Board will provide a timely response to the
issues raised in the external auditor’s management letter;

reporting to the Board on the matters set out in the Audit
Committee’s terms of reference;

reviewing arrangements employees of the Company can use,
in confidence, to raise concerns about possible improprieties
in financial reporting, internal control or other matters and
ensuring that proper arrangements are in place for fair and
independent investigation of these matters and for
appropriate follow-up action;
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54

acting as the key representative body for overseeing the
Company’s relations with the external auditor;

establishing a whistle-blowing policy and system for
employees of the Company and those who deal with the
Company (e.g. customers and suppliers) to raise concerns, in
confidence, with the Audit Committee about possible
improprieties in any matter related to the Company;

developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance and making
recommendations to the Board;

reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and the Senior
Management;

reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
the Directors;

reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
the disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report in the
Company’s annual report;

reviewing on-going connected transactions of the Company
and ensuring compliance with the terms of approval by the
Shareholders;

reviewing the findings of internal investigations and the Senior
Management’s responses in relation to any suspected fraud
or irregularities or failures of internal controls or infringement
of laws, rules and regulations; and

considering any other topics as determined by the Board.
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During the year ended 31 March 2020, two Audit Committee
meetings were held whereat the Audit Committee, among others, (i)
reviewed the unaudited consolidated financial results of the
Company for the six months ended 30 September 2019; and (ii)
reviewed the consolidated financial statements of the Company for
the year ended 31 March 2019. The attendance of individual
members was set out in the following table:

BE_TTF=-"FA=1+—HILFE BXZEGHT
MREHNA (P EE) () ERNARTARE_Z-AFAh
A=t HIEANEANREEZGE VMRS - R () FH
ARABE-_T-NF=ZA=T—HLEFENGEANE
& o ERIKE ML FECHEN TR -

Attended/
Name of committee members Eligible to attend
ZEERERE BHE SEEHE
Mr. David John Kennedy David John Kennedy 5t 4 1/
(appointed on 30 June 2019) (RZE-NFRA=THEZE)
Mr. Richard Gareth Williams Richard Gareth Williams %4 2/2
Mr. Robert Peter Andrews Robert Peter Andrews &4 2/2

Mr. Lap Shek Eddie Wong
(resigned on 30 June 2019)

EFIAKE

Remuneration committee

We established our Remuneration Committee in compliance with
Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules on 20 September 2016. Our
Remuneration Committee consists of five members, namely Mr.
Robert Peter Andrews (chairman), Mr. David John Kennedy, Mr.
Richard Gareth Williams, Mr. Neil David Howard and Mr. Steven
Paul Smithers. The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration
Committee include:

° making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for the remuneration of all Directors and
the Senior Management and on the establishment of a formal
and transparent procedure for developing a remuneration
policy;

° reviewing and approving the Senior Management’s
remuneration proposals by reference to the Board’s
corporate goals and objectives;

° making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and the Senior
Management and such packages include benefits in kind,
pension rights and compensation payments, including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or
appointment;

11
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° considering salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment, responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

° reviewing and approving compensation payable to the
executive Directors and the Senior Management for any loss
or termination of office or appointment to ensure that it is
consistent with contractual terms and is otherwise fair and
not excessive;

° reviewing and approving compensation arrangements relating
to the dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to
ensure that they are consistent with contractual terms and
are otherwise reasonable and appropriate;

° ensuring that no Director or any of his/her associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) is involved in deciding his/her
own remuneration; and

° reviewing the Group’s policy on expense reimbursements for
the Directors and the Senior Management.

The Remuneration Committee has adopted the model described in
Code Provision B.1.2(c) (ii) of the CG Code (i.e. make
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual executive Director and Senior Management).

During the year ended 31 March 2020, two Remuneration
Committee meetings were held whereat the Remuneration
Committee reviewed and recommended to the Board for
consideration of the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and the Senior Management. The attendance of individual
members was set out in the following table.
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Attended/

Name of committee members Eligible to attend
ZEERBENE BHE SEREE
Mr. Robert Peter Andrews Robert Peter Andrews %t 4 2/2
Mr. David John Kennedy David John Kennedy %t 4 1/1

(appointed on 30 June 2019) (R=ZE-—NFRA=THEZE)
Mr. Richard Gareth Wiliams Richard Gareth Williams 5 4 2/2
Mr. Neil David Howard Neil David Howard %t 4 2/2
Mr. Steven Paul Smithers Steven Paul Smithers 9t 4 2/2
Mr. Lap Shek Eddie Wong T AEE 11

(resigned on 30 June 2019) (RZE—-NFERA=THET)

56 IBI Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019/2020



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREBRRE

Nomination committee

We established our Nomination Committee in compliance with the
CG Code on 20 September 2016. Our Nomination Committee
consists of five members, namely Mr. Neil David Howard
(chairman), Mr. David John Kennedy, Mr. Richard Gareth Williams,
Mr. Robert Peter Andrews and Mr. Steven Paul Smithers. The
primary duties of our Nomination Committee are to make
recommendations to our Board on the appointment of our Directors
and Senior Management.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include:

° reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience and diversity of
perspectives) of the Board at least annually and making
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

° identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and selecting or making recommendations to the
Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships, with due regard for the benefits of diversity on
the Board;

° assessing the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors;

° reviewing the Board diversity policy of the Company, as
appropriate; and reviewing the measurable objectives that the
Board has set for implementing such policy, and the progress
on achieving the objectives; and

° making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or reappointment of Directors and succession planning for
the Directors, in particular, the chairman and the chief
executives.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, one Nomination Committee
meeting was held whereat the Nomination Committee, among
others, (i) assessed the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors; (ii) recommended to the Board for
consideration the re-appointment of all the retiring Directors as
Directors at the 2019 AGM,; (iii) reviewed the structure, size and
composition of the Board; and (iv) reviewed the Board diversity
policy. The attendance of individual members was set out in the
following table.
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Attended/
Name of committee members Eligible to attend
ZEEHRERSR BHE SEEHE
Mr. Neil David Howard Neil David Howard %t 4= 1/1
Mr. Steven Paul Smithers Steven Paul Smithers 7t 4 1/1
Mr. David John Kennedy David John Kennedy %t 4 -
(appointed on 30 June 2019) (RZE—NFAA=THEZHF)
Mr. Robert Peter Andrews Robert Peter Andrews 5t 4 1/1
Mr. Richard Gareth Williams Richard Gareth Williams 5 4 1/1
Mr. Lap Shek Eddie Wong T A%E 1/1
(resigned on 30 June 2019) (RZZE—NEFEAB=1THEMFE)
Nomination Policy REBBUER
The Board has adopted a nomination policy which sets out the ZEEEZSIEEMNIZEZ/WE  ERHYTE - SERLREHS

procedures and criteria for the selection, appointment and
reappointment of the Directors. In evaluating and selecting any
candidate for directorship, the Nomination Committee shall
consider the candidates’ character and integrity, professional
qualifications, skills, knowledge and experience, independence,
diversity on the Board, willingness to devote adequate time to
discharge duties as a Board member and such other criteria that
are appropriate to the business of the Company.

Board Diversity Policy

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development,
the Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an
essential element in supporting the attainment of its strategic
objectives and its sustainable development. In designing the
Board’s composition, Board diversity has been considered from a
number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments will
be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision will be
based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will
bring to the Board.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct for securities transactions. Following specific enquires of
all the Directors, all the Directors confirm that they have complied
with the required standards of dealing as set out in the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 March 2020.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR AND REMUNERATION

BDO Limited is appointed as the external auditor of the Company.

For the year ended 31 March 2020, the fees paid to BDO Limited
for the audit of the annual financial statements of the Group were
HK$900,000 (excluding the expenses on the non-audit service
provided by BDO Limited).

The non-auditing services fees charged by BDO Limited in relation
to the agreed-upon procedures performed on the interim financial
results of the Group for the six months ended 30 September 2019
were approximately HK$87,000.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flow
during the reporting period. In preparing the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2020, the Directors have
selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently,
made judgments and estimates that are prudent, fair and
reasonable and prepared the consolidated financial statements on
a going concern basis. There are no material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. A statement
from the external auditors about its reporting responsibilities on the
consolidated financial statements is set out on pages 83 to 88 of
this report.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for maintaining sound and effective
internal control and risk management systems in order to safeguard
the Group’s assets and Shareholders’ interests and reviewing the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control and risk
management systems on an annual basis so as to ensure that
internal control and risk management systems in place are
adequate. The Company outsourced its internal audit function to an
external consultant who reports directly to the Board. The internal
audit function primarily carries out the analysis and independent
appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness of the issuer’s risk
management and internal control systems, and reports their
findings to the Board on, at least, an annual basis.

The Group’s internal control system includes a well-established
organisational structure with clearly defined lines of responsibility
and authority. The day-to-day departmental operations are
entrusted to individual department which is accountable for its own
conduct and performance and is required to operate its own
department’s business within the scope of the delegated authority
and to implement and strictly adhere to the strategies and policies
set by the Company from time to time. Each department is also
required to keep the Board informed of material developments of
the department’s business and implementation of the policies and
strategies set by the Board on a regular basis.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Board had reviewed the
effectiveness of the internal control and risk management systems
of the Group to ensure that a sound system is maintained and
operated by the management in compliance with the agreed
procedures and standards. The review covered all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions. In particular, the Board considered the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programs and budget of the Company’s accounting, internal audit
and financial reporting functions. The review was made by
discussions with the management of the Company and the
assessment conducted by the Audit Committee. The Board
believes that the existing internal control system is adequate and
effective, in particular, for financial reporting and Listing Rules
compliance.
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INSIDE INFORMATION

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling
and dissemination of inside information, the Company takes
seriously of its obligations under Part XIVA of the SFO and the
Listing Rules. The Company has adopted a Continuous Disclosure
Compliance Policy which sets out guidelines and procedures to the
Directors and officers of the Group to ensure inside information of
the Group is to be disseminated to the public in an equal and timely
manner. A flowchart has been improvised to provide guidelines for
next action steps. The Company has also communicated to all
relevant staff regarding the implementation of the Continuous
Disclosure Compliance Policy and the relevant trainings are also
provided.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDER
RIGHTS

The Company’s annual general meeting remains the principal forum
for dialogue with the Shareholders. The Shareholders are
encouraged to participate in the proceedings and ask questions
about the resolutions being proposed and the operations of the
Group. The Articles allows a Shareholder entitled to attend and
vote to appoint more than one proxy to attend and vote on behalf
of the Shareholder and also provides that a proxy need not be a
shareholder of the Company.

Code Provision E.1.3 of the CG Code stipulates that the issuer
should arrange for the notice to shareholders to be sent in the case
of the annual general meeting at least 20 clear business days
before the meeting and in the case of all other general meetings at
least 10 clear business days before the meeting. The Company has
been in compliance with such code provision.

All resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted by poll
pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange after each
general meeting.
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Procedures for Shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting

Pursuant to article 64 of the Articles, the Board may, whenever it
thinks fit, convene an extraordinary general meeting. Extraordinary
general meetings shall also be convened on the requisition of one
or more Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the
requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company having the right of voting at general meetings. Such
requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the company
secretary for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be held
within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21
days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself/herself (themselves) may do so
in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at general
meeting

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to propose new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Cayman Islands
Companies Law (2016 Revision). However, Shareholders who wish
to propose resolutions may follow article 64 of the Articles for
requisitioning an extraordinary general meeting and including a
resolution at such meeting. The requirements and procedures of
article 64 are set out above. As regards proposing a person for
election as a Director, the procedures are available on the website
of the Company.

Procedures for putting enquiries to the Company and
contact details

Shareholders may, at any time, direct questions, request for
publicly available information and provide comments and
suggestions to directors or management of the Company. Such
questions, requests and comments can be addressed to the
Company by mail to 3/F, Bangkok Bank Building, 18 Bonham
Strand West, Hong Kong or by email to ibi@ibi.com.hk.
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Shareholders should direct their questions about their
shareholdings by mail to the Company’s Hong Kong branch share
registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 54, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong or by telephone at
(852) 2980-1333, who has been appointed by the Company to
deal with Shareholders for share registration and related matters.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 March 2020 and up to the date of this
report, there has not been any change in the Articles. The Articles
are available on the websites of the Company (www.ibi.com.hk)
and the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk).

COMPANY SECRETARY AND PRIMARY
CONTACT OF THE COMPANY

Directors have access to the services of the company secretary to
ensure that the Board procedures are followed. The company
secretary of the Company is Mr. Yun Wah Man. He was the
principal and head of corporate advisory division of Dominic K.F.
Chan & Co., and is a director of RHT Corporate Advisory (HK)
Limited. The primary corporate contact person at the Company is
Mr. Neil David Howard, the chairman and chief executive officer of
the Company. In compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules,
Mr. Yun Wah Man has undertaken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training during the year ended 31 March 2020.
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The Group is pleased to present the ESG Report to express the
Group’s efforts towards sustainable practices and development.
The Group’s ESG Report has been set out in accordance with the
standards as set forth by the Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing
Limited in its ESG Reporting Guide under Appendix 27 to the
Listing Rules.

This ESG Report focuses on our sustainability approach and
performance in the environmental and social aspects of our
business primarily in Hong Kong in the reporting period from 1 April
2019 to 31 March 2020. The Group will continue to strengthen the
information collection of the business in both Hong Kong and
Macau in order to enhance the performance in environmental
concerns and to disclose relevant information in sustainable
development.

Established in 1997, our Group has grown to become one of the
region’s leading building contractors in the corporate, retail,
hospitality and education sectors in Hong Kong and Macau. Our
Group has completed hundreds of projects continuing to building
on our reputation on the back of our core principles of strong
communication, director involvement and staunch business ethics.

Our Group is a building contractor focusing on providing renovation
services as a main contractor for property projects in the private
sector including fitting-out projects and A&A projects. We take on
the overall responsibility for all aspects of project management,
coordination, safety and quality control but do not directly
undertake the physical construction works. Our specialist
subcontractors are responsible for performing the labour intensive
and skilled trade works of the projects. The pollution management
and wastage treatment is directly controlled by subcontractors
while the Group provides pollution and wastage treatment
guidelines and plays a monitoring role to ensure the treatments and
controls are in compliance with the relevant regulations. We also
evaluate our subcontractors’ performance in environmental
aspects.

The Group has complied with the “comply or explain” provisions
set out in the ESG Reporting Guide for the reporting period.
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

EEMRIME

Following the discussion with our senior management and RBfIKESAETIERBLREBRAETWE H CHEpEKE
operational staff, we have identified the ESG issues relevant to the EBBEMESGER @ WiFBEEMERIESGERH K
Group, the identified ESG issues have been assessed by ffIHNFBEXEE « ASHEE N AEENEEHNE
considering their materiality and importance to our principle of KM FIAFEE - TRITRER BEENESGEE
activities, stakeholders as well as the Group. The ESG issues

considered to be material are listed below:

ESG aspects as set forth in
the ESG Reporting Guide
ESG ¥ & 1ES| TR ESG B H

Material ESG issues
EZESGEE

A. Environmental
RiB
A1 Emissions

B

A2 Use of resources
B A

A3 The environment and natural resources
R RARANEIR

B. Social

e

B1 Employment
&=

B2 Health and safety
[EE e

B3 Development and training
ELEYSe=E]

B4 Labour standards
4 TR

B5 Supply chain management
HERERE

B6 Product responsibility

EmEE
B7 Anti-corruption
K&
B8 Community investment

HERE

e Emission from electricity and paper usage
RE KRBTl B Y

e Non-hazardous solid waste emission
EEE RS R

e FElectricity usage
AE

e Measures in reducing environmental impact
WMORBEZ BN

e Labour practices
BIER
e Workplace health and safety
THERBHERREZ SR
e Staff development and training
8 TR &E
e Anti-child and forced labour
RE TR HI%5T
e Supplier management
HEmER
e Product and service responsibility, quality assurance, customer service,
safeguarding customer assets
EREREEE  BERE  TPR%E  REEFEE
e Anti-corruption policy
REFBE
e Community involvement
A
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STAKEHOLDERS FEEDBACK

The Group welcomes stakeholders’ feedback on their ESG
concerns. Readers are welcome to share their views with the
Group at email address: ESG@ibi.com.hk

A.

66

Environmental

Our Group companies, 1Bl Limited and IBI Projects Limited,
have ISO 14001:2015 Environmental Management Systems
Certification which is an internationally recognised standard
for the development of policies and procedures which deal
with the environmental aspects of a business’s practices. Our
Group is in compliance with these international standards and
aims to act and conduct our business in a socially and
environmentally responsible manner.

Our Group pursues minimum environmental compliance
prosecutions. During the reporting year, we did not have any
(2019: 2) cases of environmental prosecution. We will
continue to do our best for the environment.

NEEHEERR

AEBENN ZAEEREESHESGHENREREE
B MEUDEE B ASE (EE i - ESG@ibi.com.hk)
ROMEHAEBNEE -

A. BRE

N % [ jE T~ 2 7Bl Limited & IBI Projects Limited
HEAISO 14001 : 2015 B E IR BE X% » b))
B E B EIRIREUR MR B BIPR R AR 2 - R
BEEBEZSEEREE  WBHUETERIREE
EMREEITERCEERS -

AEBBOERREREFEEZRE - NI|E $
E - BATEEA(CE-AF 0 —R)REIE
BPSEERNRERE
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Our Group does not directly deal with hazardous wastes on AEEVEEERERMEBEMBNEEREY -
our construction sites but we provide training and guidelines BeREFEREBREELES BEREEELIEE
to our subcontractors on a project by project basis and TWEEEB D BB TR EEARNEK !

monitor the subcontractors to follow the requirements with
reference to the following legislation and regulations:

Category Relevant laws and regulations
il HBEERER
General: > Environmental Impact Assessment Ordinance (Cap. 499)
B CRIBZ BT HIEOINEFE499F)
>  Hong Kong Planning Standards and Guidelines
BB BIR R
Air: > Air Pollution Control Ordinance (Cap. 311)
=R (ERFAREHURGINEI11F)
> Hong Kong Air Quality Objectives
BEATERERER
> Air Pollution Control (Construction Dust) Regulation (Cap. 311R)
(ERBAEH GRETRER) RFINESIRE)
Water: > Water Pollution Control Ordinance (Cap. 358)
K OKFRE &GN 358 %)
> Water Quality Objectives
AR E IR
Waste: >  Summary Offences Ordinance (Cap. 228)
&Y - (A ZRRFRFIRDINFE228F)
> Factories and Industrial Undertakings Ordinance (Cap. 59)
(IR TEEEGROINEIE)
> Waste Disposal Ordinance (Cap. 354)
(BEMREERDINEIB4E)
> Public Cleansing and Prevention of Nuisances (Regional Council) By-Law
(Cap. 132BY)
(RABRBRFRYIEGE (BEMEE) MHINE132BIE)
> Public Health and Municipal Services Ordinance (Cap. 132)
(AREERTEIEGINE132F)
>  Waste Disposal (Chemical Waste) (General) Regulations (Cap. 354C)
CREYBRIE (L 2REY)) (—AR) RPINE 354C &)
>  Practice Note for Authorized Persons 144: Control of Environmental

Nuisance from Construction Sites (August 1997)

RAIATEREERIT 144 - EHREMBURFENNZE (199758 )
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A.1. Emissions

The major source of air emissions that are directly
generated by our Group of companies is the indirect
energy emission resulting from the disposal of non-
hazardous wastes and the use of electricity at our office
and project site offices. In order to reduce our carbon
footprint, we have implemented the measures listed in
the “A.2. Use of resources” section.

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group relating to air and
greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and
land, and generation of hazardous waste.

The Group has closely monitored the disposal of the
construction wastes to ensure the waste treatment
complies with the local regulations and minimise
unnecessary construction waste. The Group considers
the hazardous waste generated during the Group’s
operations is minimal. Our operating activities are
generally in office buildings and the type of works
carried out does not directly lead to the generation of
hazardous waste. Hazardous waste generated by
subcontractors at the construction sites are primarily
paint cans and fluorescent lamp tubes. Subcontractors
are required to comply with a set of waste management
procedures for handling hazardous and non-hazardous
waste, which must be collected and disposed of by
qualified and licensed waste collectors in accordance
with the applicable regulations. We also minimise paper
waste by recycling paper.

During the reporting period, we have collected and
recycled 0.207 tonnes of paper used in office.
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The following tables show the greenhouse gas (“GHG”)
emissions and wastes disposal we have recorded

TRINTERMANREREER SR ERE
(BRERBHFRLEYRE

IJI

during the reporting period:

Emission Indicators 2020 2019
BRI —ECEF —E-NF
Indirect emissions (Scope 2) ARy (S

(tonnes CO,e)* (-S| tixEE)*

— Electricity — 87 55.04 52.70
Other emissions (Scope 3) (tonnes CO,e)  E At HERY) (HiE=

( ﬁﬁ %'ﬂ: }IEE! i

— Paper consumption — #RRBHE 12.81 13.60
Total emission (tonnes CO,e) MR E (MBSt EE) 67.85 66.3
Total emission per floor area (tonnes/ REMmETENBERE

sq.ft.) (WEFHR) 0.01 0.01
Total emission per employee BT EMAEINE

(tonnes/employee) (W8, 8T) 0.65 0.66

# The guidance for reporting on GHG emissions set out # EXFEAAREREREBIERAES T A

above is based on the EPD’s “Guidelines to Account for
and Report on Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Removals
for Buildings (Commercial, Residential or Institutional
Purposes) in Hong Kong” issued by Electrical and
Mechanical Services Department and Environmental
Protection Department.

BEIRENREREZRMORRE(ELR
£ (FE - EEHAHMR)WBEEREIN
KRR E MRS a5 REE -

Waste types 2020 2019
EYE R —ECEH —ZET-NEF
Total non-hazardous construction mEREEyEs (1)

waste (tonnes) 1,377.61 664.65
Paper consumption (tonnes) HoRIEFES (W) 2.67 2.83
Total non-hazardous waste (tonnes) mEEYES () 1,380.28 667.48
Total waste per construction project RERIBEFENREYRAE

(tonnes/project) (W, 188 ) 76.68 445
Total waste per revenue (tonnes/ RS E R EY RS

million dollar) (W, ‘&) 2.28 1.12

Our emission indicators have remained stable
compared to the previous year while our figures for
waste have increased. Total non-hazardous waste in
2020 have Increased by 106.8% compared to the year
2019. This was mainly due to the significant amount of
non-hazardous waste produced by a large clubhouse
project during the year.

BLRFARLL - RMIBERMIE SR R#IFRET -
MEYM T EMNEEAIBMIGIN - —TFF
WNEZEEVHER - — LFEM
106.8% * FEMRNFA—IBARE FFTIEE
EETAEEEEY -
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A.2. Use of resources
Office and site office management

We have procedures in place for our employees to
follow in order to reduce the amount of resources and
electricity used by and emissions generated from
appliances, electrical equipment and lighting that we
use in our offices.

>  Use of LED and T5 Fluorescent tubes instead of
incandescent light bulbs;

> Use of a master switch to turn off office
equipment and lighting during non-office hours;

> Purchase of environmentally friendly electronic
appliances;

> Purchase motion sensors for the lighting to save
electricity in the office;

> Provide recycle bins in the office area;

> Use of e statement and e communication instead
of printing where applicable;

> Post reminders in the pantry to encourage our
staff to use water efficiently; and

> Post green notes near photocopiers to encourage
our staff to think before they print, print double-
sided and reuse single-sided printed paper.

The implementation of the above procedures have lead
to a stable water, electricity and paper consumption in
our offices.
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Construction sites management

Our Group understands the importance of resources
and have mechanisms in place to use the resources
more efficiently. We provide proper training to staff,
subcontractors and site workers on how to use the
equipment and materials in a safe, productive and
efficient manner. New staff members are supplied with
training upon joining our Group while current staff are
supplied with refresher training approximately every six
months.

We encourage our subcontractors to be mindful when
carrying out their duties so as to reduce waste and
welcome any suggestions on managing or reducing
waste at the construction sites. We budget and buy
materials on as-needed basis to avoid over purchasing
of materials and to efficiently reduce the wastage at the
construction sites. We encourage our subcontractors
to continue using the remaining materials in future
projects to minimise the overall wastage at the
construction sites.
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Water usage

Based on the business nature, the Group has not
identified any issue in sourcing water. The water
consumption is limited to the water usage in the office
which is supplied by the landlord of the properties and
not by the Group, thus water usage is considered to
have minimal effect to our business operation. The
Group will continue to enforce prevention control by
encouraging all staff to follow the water saving practice
as set by the Group.

The use of packaging materials for finished products is
not applicable to our Group due to its business nature.

We are dedicated to using the resources efficiently in
our operation. The electricity consumed in our Hong
Kong office is our key energy consumption. The
consumption data during the reporting period are
shown in following table respectively:

FAK

ENEBHEE  ARERIGNKR LI HEE
BRAEMEE - KERRKAZEMRK BE
7K MEEEMIEARKEHE - BULAK
BARERBEENTEEN - AKESE
BB B TEREASESENEE AKX
E i - AR ISR TERD TR o

EREBHUE - sEKMERSEYHALT
SRR AEH -

BABOIREXRHLETBRERER -
BAMEREREIZREBBNAERE -
R E HE AR EFEBIREN T K

Energy Consumption 2020 2019
BEIRUHFE b i 55 —T-NF
Total electricity consumption (kwh) witrE e (TER) 69,674 66,713
Total electricity consumption per RIEEEETENERER

floor area (kwh/sq.ft.) # (TRE FHR) 9.55 9.14
Total electricity consumption HEISNENEEES

per employee (kwh/employee) (TRE BTI) 670 667

# The guidance for reporting on GHG emissions set out # XS AR E RSB IE 5] T A

above is based on the EPD’s “Guidelines to Account for
and Report on Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Removals
for Buildings (Commercial, Residential or Institutional
Purposes) in Hong Kong” issued by Electrical and
Mechanical Services Department and Environmental

Protection Department.

Qur overall energy consumption level remained
consistent in 2020 as compared to the year 2019.
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A.3. The Environment and Natural Resources

Pollution control guideline

We provide guidance, briefing and training to sub-
contractors and site workers with reference to the Air
Pollution Control Ordinance and Water Pollution Control
Ordinance and its subsidiary regulations in Hong Kong.

We do not directly deal with the physical construction
work but we have project managers in charge to
monitor the air pollution and waste water treatment to
ensure it is in compliance with the regulations. We also
implement an environmental management system for
every project to encourage the subcontractors to use
appropriate pollution prevention measures before
construction work commences to minimise the adverse
impacts to air pollution and water quality.

We set appropriate air pollution control system
measures on site and waste water treatment
procedures for our subcontractors and our site
managers, safety and environmental officers and
foremen are responsible to carry out site inspection
procedures to monitor the performance of the
subcontractors and to present their feedback during
the evaluation process.

Waste management guideline — Hazardous and non-
hazardous waste

Our waste management plan controls our daily working
activities by controlling the categories of Reduction,
Avoidance, Recycling and Reusing and Disposal.

We ensure that we reduce waste through increasing
our efficiency, avoiding over purchasing of materials
and other methods in order to limit the amount of waste
that is generated during the course of our refurbishment
services.

Any waste that is hazardous is treated carefully and
disposed of properly by subcontractors. We ensure
registered chemical waste collectors which are
approved by EPD are used by subcontractors and have
a procedure to monitor the disposal circumstances to
ensure that it is safe to the public and in compliance
with the regulations.
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In relation to the non-hazardous waste, our Group has
a system in place to record the quantities of different
wastes that are disposed. We separate recyclable
waste into four categories namely: metal, paper, plastic
and aluminum. We temporarily store our waste at a
designated area and put them into separate containers
which are suitable for holding the waste.

We dispose the waste off-site as soon as practicable in
order to optimise the storage space we have on-site.
We always maintain good housekeeping in the storage
area and we ensure that we handle all waste properly.
We plan each project to ensure that the issue of waste,
and its proper handling and disposal, is taken into
account and identify the disposal company we can use
to help us with the disposal.

Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design
(‘LEED”) Projects

We have in the past engaged in a number of LEED
projects with our customers and have experience in
these types of projects. During the reporting period, no
LEED projects have been completed (2019: 2) for our
customers. LEED projects are a popular green building
certification aimed at helping our customers who
choose to have LEED certification to be environmentally
responsible and use resources efficiently in their
refurbishment, redecoration design and implementation.
The LEED certification includes a rating system for
different aspects such as construction, operation and
design. We offer our customers LEED design and
implementation services should they wish to have LEED
certification as part of our refurbishment services. LEED
has different certification levels namely: Certified, Silver,
Gold and Platinum based on allocating points on the
human benefits and potential environmental impacts.
The higher the rating, the better the design meets the
different LEED requirements.
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B. Social B. #®g

B.1. Employment B.1. E1&

Our Group understands the importance of the impact
that employees have on the Group and our reputation
and aims to provide our employees with a happy,
healthy and safe working environment. As at 31 March
2020, approximately 14% (2019: 16%) of our
employees had worked for over 5 years and

AEBFRHBIHALE R EBEFENS
T BNABTITERR BELRLEN
TERE - R_Z-_ZTF=_A=1+—H8 &
M#914% (ZZ—NF : 16%) B THEAEE
TERFENU L MEAOAEEBBTFHE
THME22% (ZF—NF 1 21%) »

approximately 22% (2019: 21%) of our employees had
worked for more than 10 years in the Group.

Staff stability
EIREM

>18%ears 22%

> géears -] 4 %

= wt 64%

Our staff handbook is well established and issued to all
staff for their reference pertaining to office rules and
benefits such as typhoon arrangements, annual leave,
working hours, office attire, jury duty, salary and lunch
hours as well as other rules and benefits. We provide
employees with Health and Safety and other
Developmental Training as well as having proper
whistleblowing procedures in place for our employees
to follow without fear of reprisal or receiving any
negative feedback.

We are dedicated to offering equal opportunities and a
fair and diverse work environment in our employment
practices. Our recruitment process is non-
discriminatory and is solely based on the employees’
performance, experience and skills.

HPEHETENETFM - EPEIIEN
eRZHE - R TIERME HAEER
BEELH  FeATERBSHRAZERE
RA@RIA R B AR A R i@ Fl) - W AR 28 B
TUH2E - ZFRETRHEERE2 RE
B RE - YREERBRIZT EET
BAFHBESWET A EFE -
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B.2.

Employees’ remuneration is commensurate with their
job nature, qualifications and experience. Salaries are
subject to an annual review that is based on
performance appraisals and other relevant factors. We
also encourage internal promotion and a variety of job
opportunities is offered to the existing staff when they
arise.

In addition to the statutory holidays, the Group satisfies
the special needs of employees through a
comprehensive leave system, providing marriage leave,
compassionate leave and paternity leave.

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group relating to
compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other
benefits and welfare.

Health and Safety

Our Group companies, IBI Limited and IBI Projects
Limited, are OHSAS 18001:2007 Occupational Health
& Safety Management Systems Certified. This
certification sets out Occupational Health and Safety
Requirements and Best Practices. OHSAS 18001 is a
framework that sets out a range of standards that can
help our Group to put controls policies and procedures
in place to achieve good working conditions and
workplace health and safety. This framework is
internationally recognised as setting best practices and
provide certified companies with a range of benefits
such as identifying hazards and how to manage them,
creating good working conditions, reducing work place
accidents and engaging and motivating staff. We
understand the importance of Occupational Health and
Safety and aim to continually improve, reduce
workplace hazards, increase employee motivation and
be in compliance with OHSAS 18001 standards. For
details on training related to health and safety, please
refer to “B.3. Development and Training” below.
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We provide sufficient safety training to subcontractor
workers to ensure that they work with consciousness
and knowledge of safety. The training contents include AR BIEH S 26N R EEE ARG -
site safety introduction and proper usage of equipment. TEERREBEMAAESBEE TAEENEZEE
The following shows the details of our safety training of g o

our subcontractor workers.

Safety Training Z 213

5,100 hours
5,100/ B

8,681 persons
8,681F At

We provide staff with a modern, clean breakout area
which includes exercise bikes, showers, sofas, TV,
pantry and dining area in the head office. Further, the
Group also provides staff with safety and health training
as well as regular Employee Safety and Health memos
for their reference. The safety memo is for the benefit of
our staff to ensure that they use the office equipment
safely and that there is minimal chance of occupational
hazards taking place in our offices.

Apart from training, benefits and safeguards we have
for employees, we also advocate a healthy work-life
balance for all employees. We have staff events such as
financial planning seminar and annual Christmas party,
as well as adhoc celebration lunches when we are
awarded, or completed, a project we take pride in. We
have quite a number of long serving staff and we give
recognition and thanks to our loyal staff for their years
of hard dedication, loyal service and positive
contribution to our Group.

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group relating to providing a
safe working environment and protecting employees
from occupational hazards.
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B.3. Development and Training

We provide comprehensive Health and Safety training
that includes, but not limited to, induction to the
Group’s safety system and identification of their safety
duties, group safety policy and updates on changes to
legislations and regulations to all new staff when they
join us and to all regular staff on a bi-yearly basis to
ensure they understand the importance of safety and
how to operate the machines and keep the site clear of
hazards. We also have a Safety and Environmental
Officer in charge to oversee the site and ensure that it is
safe for staff members to carry out their daily duties.
We have an Environmental Management Plan (EMP) for
our refurbishment work which will be followed by all
team members, and the Safety and Environmental
Officer helps to supervise and monitor the
implementation of the EMP. These plans, procedures
and policies are in place to ensure we provide a safe
working environment and protect our employees from
hazards.

The following shows the details of our Health and
Safety training for our office and site staff:

Staff Training & T %3

896 persons
896 B AT
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Labour Standards

We have an Equal Opportunity Policy in place which
explains our policy on having a work environment that
is free of discrimination and that all employees have
equal opportunity regardless of age, marital status,
pregnancy status, race and religion. We advocate a
work-life balance at the workplace and managers are
available to communicate with the staff to ensure the
staff to raise their concerns or suggestions for
management’s consideration.

Our Group also has an Anti Child and Forced Labour
Policy for our Companies, employees, suppliers and
subcontractors to follow. We do not employ or
advocate the employment of children or of people who
are forced to work. All workers are employed on a
voluntary basis with agreed terms and are not forced or
coerced into working for our Group.

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group relating to preventing
child and forced labour.

Supply Chain Management

The Group maintains an approved suppliers and
subcontractor list. We perform assessment on new
suppliers and subcontractors and continue the
evaluation on an ongoing basis. We understand the
importance of environmental protection and we
encourage our suppliers and subcontractors to follow
our environmental management system.

We provide training and guidance to our subcontractors
for every project including our environmental
management system and relevant guidelines. All
subcontractors and suppliers are rated after the
completion of each job by our Group’s Tendering
Director, based on feedback from the project staffs
records, which are kept for our staffs’ reference. The
rating is based on numerous aspects such as quality,
safety, environmental and social risk, health and other
aspects. We further perform annual review on our
suppliers and subcontractors’ performance. We rate
and discuss their performance in different aspects
including price, quality, delivery, health and safety, as
well as environmental and social aspects. The
evaluation record serves as the starting point to our
selection of subcontractors for our future projects.
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B.6. Product Responsibility

Our Group companies, IBI Limited and IBI Projects
Limited, have ISO 9001:2015 Quality Management
Systems Certification. This certification is an
internationally recognised qualification relating to
product quality and quality management systems.
There are quality principles relating to customer focus,
leadership, engagement of people, process approach,
improvement, evidence-based decision making and
relationship management. We take the quality of our
project delivery seriously and act in accordance with
the ISO principles and aim to ensure to continue have
high customer satisfaction and meet customer
expectations. The ISO 9001 helps to give us guidance
on best practices and policies for us to use to ensure
that our Quality Management Systems are maintained
at a high standard and that we can continue to make
improvements on customer satisfaction, employee
motivation and other current practices.

Our Group takes our obligation to customers seriously
and aims to continue delivering high quality fitting out
and A&A services for customers across the region. We
engage with our customers and ask for feedback from
each project. We work with our customers to deliver
desired results and strive to maintain a high degree of
customers’ satisfaction. Our Group’s Directors are in
charge of making sure that we can meet our
customers’ requirements in areas such as quality,
environmental concerns, safety, cost, time schedule,
customer data protection and customer privacy. We
ensure that all customer data is used and kept in strict
confidence in accordance with our customers’
requirements.

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group relating to health and
safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating
to services provided and methods of redress.
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B.7. Anti-Corruption

QOur Group implements an Anti-Corruption and
Whistleblowing Policy that states any bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering behaviour will not be
tolerated by the Group. Our Group and employees are
(i) prohibited from paying or receiving a bribe of any
kind; (ii) prohibited from giving or offering anything of
value to a public official; (i) required to observe the
Group’s guidelines in relation to the giving and receiving
of gifts and hospitality; and (iv) required to fully comply
with the applicable laws and regulations relating to anti-
money laundering and terrorist financing.

We provide our staff with proper whistleblowing
channels so that they can raise concerns when needed,
without fear of reprisal or any negative impacts.

We encourage our employees to voice out their opinion
and our Group will not take any negative action against
staff for voicing out their concerns through the proper
whistleblowing channels. Our Group fully supports
employees to raise concerns in good faith and the
mentioned issue will be discussed by management and
dealt within a professional and appropriate manner.

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group relating to bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering.
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B.8. Community Investment

The Group cares for the youth and those who are less
fortunate in society and we aim to do our part in
supporting the local community by making donations
and supporting local charities. We have provided
internship to students from City University of Hong
Kong, The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and
participated in the student Industrial Attachment
Programme ran by the Hong Kong Institute of
Vocational Education (IVE) every year. We share our
experiences to the students and provide an opportunity
for them to gain working experience to help them to
plan their career. During the year ended 31 March
2020, we have also supported Project Home Works ran
by Habitat for Humanity Hong Kong which helps low
income families, the elderly and physically-disabled by
providing house repairing services. We also encourage
our employees to contribute to charities with one of our
staff achieving more than 100 hours of volunteer service
during 2019 achieving a Silver Award for Volunteer
Service from the Social Welfare Department of Hong
Kong. We will continue to do our part to help those who
are in need and are less fortunate in society by making
further future donations and encouraging staff to get
involved in charity works.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZBE RS

|IBDO

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
IBl GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of IBI Group
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the
“Group”) set out on pages 89 to 168, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2020,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s “Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Recognition of contract revenue

Refer to Notes 4(j), 5(i) and 7 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Group recognised revenue from provision of renovation
services as a main contractor for property projects in the private
sector in Hong Kong and Macau (the “Construction Services”) of
approximately HK$591,129,000 for the year ended 31 March 2020.

The Group recognises revenue from Construction Services
according to the Group’s management’s estimation of the total
outcome of the construction contracts as well as the percentage of
completion of the Construction Services which requires the
estimation of contract costs of each contract. Contract costs of
individual contracts are determined based on budget of the
contract which was prepared by the management. The recognition
of revenue and the estimation of the outcome of construction
contracts require significant management judgement, in particular
with respect to estimating the cost to complete and the amounts of
variations and claims to be recognised.

Our response:

Our procedures in relation to management’s recognition of contract
revenue included:

° Comparing contract sum and budgeted contract costs to
respective signed contracts and approved budgets on a
sample basis;

° Discussing with the management of the Group and testing
the supporting evidence to evaluate the reasonableness of
the management’s estimation of the budgeted contract
costs;
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° Checking the existence and valuation of variations to
correspondences with customers on a sample basis; and

° Obtaining an understanding from management of the Group
about how the approved budgets were prepared and the
respective stage of completion were determined.

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the
directors in discharging their responsibility in this regard.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with the terms of our
engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

° obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control.
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° evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

° conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

° evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Choi Man On
Practising Certificate number: P02410

Hong Kong, 24 June 2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

GERERkHEMAEZEKER

For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE—F-_FTF=FA=1+—HIFFZ

2020 2019
—E-EHE —ZT—AF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Gk Tt T
Revenue g 7 591,129 593,448
Cost of sales HEXA (539,258) (541,717)
Gross profit ES| 51,871 51,731
Other income and gain HA A R as 8 1,198 801
Administrative and other operating TR REEMEER
expenses (27,407) (27,779)
Finance costs BB KA 9 (368) -
Profit before income tax expense [FRFTSHE XA =R 10 25,294 24,753
Income tax expense PR BRI 11 (3,667) (3,901)
Profit and total comprehensive FRRFNREZEWBALE
income for the year 21,627 20,852
Earnings per share: BRER : 14
Basic and diluted (HK Cents) EARRESE (BL) 2.7 2.6
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

iR MR R &
As at 37 March 2020
R—FE—FTF=HA=+—H

2020 2019
—EIEF —E-NF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Mo FHET T
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WENMEKRE 15 233 419
Right-of-use assets FRAEEE 16 5,276 -
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFABENEREE
profit or loss 17 12,556 -
18,065 419
Current assets REBEE
Contract assets BHEE 18 144,068 190,284
Trade and other receivables B 5 R H b EWGRIA 19 25,363 40,632
Pledged deposits BT 20 16,136 16,200
Tax recoverable Gk 1 2
Cash and cash equivalents RERIREEEY 195,673 109,361
Total current assets MEEERE 381,241 356,479
Current liabilities RBEE
Contract liabilities aHRE 18 19,726 -
Trade and other payables B 5 REMENZIE 21 238,049 222,536
Lease liabilities HEAE 22 2,467 -
Tax payables FET IR 818 855
Total current liabilities MBI AEETE 261,060 223,391
Net current assets RBEEFE 120,181 133,088
Total assets less current liabilities ZEERREBERE 138,246 133,507
Non-current liability e =R
Lease liabilities HEBE 22 3,112 -
NET ASSETS EEFE 135,134 133,507
Capital and reserves ERREE
Share capital A& AN 23 8,000 8,000
Reserves 1 127,134 125,607
TOTAL EQUITY i 135,134 133,507
On behalf of directors REZESE
Neil David HOWARD Steven Paul SMITHERS
Director Director
g EE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

GEERBER

For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE—F-_FTF=FA=1+—HIFFZ

Share Share Merger Retained
capital premium reserve profits Total
BE  RORE - AHEE  REER st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000
FHAT TR THT FHAT THT
(Note 23) (Note (i) (Note (ii))
(Bfi £ 23) (BEsEq)  (BFEE()
At 1 April 2018 R-EB-N\ENAE—H 8,000 73,613 (13,511) 72,553 140,655
Profit and total comprehensive FREF EEABRALRE

income for the year - - - 20,852 20,852
Dividend declared and paid BEEIREIRAIRE (FIE13)

(Note 13) - - - (28,000) (28,000)
At 31 March 2019 R-E-AE=A=+—H 8,000 73,613 (13,511) 65,405 133,507
Profit and total comprehensive FREFREZEBALE

income for the year - - - 21,627 21,627
Dividend declared and paid BEIRRIEMRE (FF13)

(Note 13) - - - (20,000) (20,000)
At 31 March 2020 R-ZB-ZEF=H=+—H 8,000 73,613 (13,511) 67,032 135,134
Notes: Mz -

(i) Share premium (i) BRoRE
Share premium account of the Group represents the excess of the REBE D S BEREEMNEGFEBE ARG 22T MHEE
proceeds received over the nominal value of the Company’s shares Y ER 5 o
issued.

(i) Merger reserve (i) BOtHRHE

The merger reserve represents the difference between the investment
costs in subsidiaries and the nominal value of the issued share capital of

the Group’s subsidiaries.

EHEFHENHBARNRERAEREEETHBERRLE
BATIRANEE 2 Y E R -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

= AN L=
mEEERER
For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE—T_TF=FA=+—HIFFE

2020 2019
—E-BHF —ZT—NF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
5T F#&T FHIT
Cash flows from operating activities KETHEESRE
Profit before income tax expense M PSR 5 X A A 25,294 24,753
Adjustments for: AT BIERE
Depreciation e 327 1,009
Depreciation of right-of-use assets TREEENE 2,029 -
Foreign exchange gain, net SNGE Uy 2 )RR (144) -
Fair value gain on financial assets RAFEFABZENEHE
at fair value through profit or loss EZ A EW (57) -
Interest expenses on lease liabilities MEBENFEFREZ 368 -
Interest income L2 A (1,141) (801)
Operating profit before working capital changes & 4& & 4 % &) Jij 4% & & 7] 26,676 25,051
Decrease/(increase) in contract assets BHEERLD,(35M) 46,216 (64,175)
Increase in contract liabilities BB EE N 19,726 -
Decrease/(increase) in trade and H 5 R H MW FRIE
other receivables WA (E ) 15,269 (30,396)
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 K E b A RS I 15,513 69,286
Cash generated from/(used in) operations KEE (A RS 123,400 (234)
Income tax paid EFTSH (3,703) (4,684)
Net cash generated from/(used in) BESTE TS, (FTH)
operating activities REFE 119,697 (4,918)
Cash flows from investing activities BRETHEESRE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWE  BELEE (141) (202)
Decrease in pledged deposits [ EE= 0T 64 6,437
Purchase of financial assets at fair value BEZRAFEFABEN
through profit or loss TRVEE (12,355) -
Interest received BT & 1,141 801
Net cash (used in)/generated from B&EE (FTA), /s
investing activities HEFEE (11,291) 7,036
Cash flows from financing activities METBHEESRE
Payment of lease liabilities HEAENK 28 (2,094) -
Dividend paid B E 13 (20,000) (28,000)
Net cash used in financing activities BEEBFTARSFE (22,094) (28,000)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and HeRELEEY
cash equivalents ®in, () BEE 86,312 (25,882)
Cash and cash equivalents FNRSRESEEY
at beginning of year 109,361 135,243
Cash and cash equivalents FERREREESEEY
at end of year 195,673 109,361
Analysis of the balances of cash and ReRBEEENERIW
cash equivalents
Cash at banks and in hand IRITNFHIRS 195,673 109,361
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE MR mR M

For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE—F-_FTF=FA=1+—HIFFZ

GENERAL INFORMATION 1. —REHR

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an ARARIRZE—RNEMANARERSEHS AN
exempted company with limited liability on 6 April 2016 under BRERNANE(—NAR—FE=GERE - KEE
the Companies Law, Cap.22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated M) EHESBESTMk Y AEEREBR AR ©
and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The address of its H 7 3 = & #b 4k 4190 Elgin Avenue, George
registered office is 190 Elgin Avenue, George Town, Grand Town, Grand Cayman, KY1-9007, Cayman
Cayman, KY1-9007, Cayman Islands. Its principal place of Islands ° HF B & B N BB XA A 1855
business is located at 3/F, Bangkok Bank Building, 18 BABRITRESE -

Bonham Strand West, Hong Kong.

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of KRB —_E—RNFTA+NBEETBEA
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock THABR AR ([BZ]) R EMm ([ L) -
Exchange”) on 14 October 2016 (the “Listing”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The KRB EBREERAR - REBTEELRAIES
principal activities of the Group are to act as a building ETNEHBIEF IR RS AER BEEEANR
contractor focusing on providing renovation services as a JRPIRLE B Y318 B MR o

main contractor for property projects in the private sector in

Hong Kong and Macau.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. BMEBYBREEUN(EBHBRE
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) Z80])

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1
April 2019

HKFRS 16, Lease

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23, Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Prepayment Features with

(@) RMHERETEBUBEREER — B
“E-AFENA-HEBER

MG HREERE16/HEE

e (ERMHREREZEE) —BEE23
SRATS R R R R E 1

FEREMBHREENEIRETARAMER

Negative Compensation MR TEN K
Amendments to HKAS 19, Plan amendment, BB ERF19FIBET AT ENEET - 47
curtailment or settlement R E

Amendments to HKAS 28, Long-term Interests in
Associates and Joint Ventures

FB eI R F BRI ANBLAT
IS Tl i

I
X

Amendments to HKFRS 3, HKFRS 11, HKAS 12 and MABBMEREEN -_ZE—HEE_-F
HKAS 23 included in Annual Improvements to —+ FRAFENENT BT BRELE
BIZE35: - BB BHmELEAE 119

HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

The impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 Leases have
been summarised in below. The other new or amended
HKFRSs that are effective from 1 April 2019 did not
have any significant impact on the group’s accounting
policies.

BEEGHERFE12R BB ESR
23 FREFT A

o

RABAMBERELENFE16RHEHENTE
BT - B —F—NAFHUA—BEEMK
HAiF] QBT EBY BREENHAE
B ST BRL BT AEAZE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE—T_TF=FA=+—HIFFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

94

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1
April 2019 (Continued)

HKFRS 16 — Leases

(i)

Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16

HKFRS 16 brings significant changes in
accounting treatment for lease accounting,
primarily for accounting for lessees. It replaces
HKAS 17 Leases (“HKAS 177), HK(IFRIC)-Int 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a
Lease, HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating Leases-
Incentives and HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating the
Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal
Form of a Lease. From a lessee’s perspective,
almost all leases are recognised in the statement
of financial position as a right-of-use assets and a
lease liabilities, with the narrow exception to this
principle for leases which the underlying assets
are of low-value or are determined as short-term
leases. From a lessor’s perspective, the
accounting treatment is substantially unchanged
from HKAS 17. For details of HKFRS 16 regarding
its new definition of a lease, its impact on the
Group’s accounting policies and the transition
method adopted by the Group as allowed under
HKFRS 16, please refer to section (i) to (iv) of this
note.

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 using the
cumulative effect approach and recognised all the
cumulative effect of initially applying HKFRS 16 if
any as an adjustment to the opening balance of
retained earnings at the date of initial application.
The comparative information presented in
2018/19 has not been restated and continues to
be reported under HKAS 17 and related
interpretations as allowed by the transition
provision in HKFRS 16.

IBI Group Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE MR mR M

For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE—F-_FTF=FA=1+—HIFFZ

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1
April 2019 (Continued)

HKFRS 16 — Leases (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 (Continued)

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had operating
lease commitment of approximately HK$350,000
for which the lease term ends within 12 months of
the date of initial application and the leases do
not include a renewal option. Accordingly, the
Group has not recognised any right-of-use assets
nor lease liabilities as at 1 April 2019 but to
account for payments on these leases as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the
remaining lease term.

The new definition of a lease

Under HKFRS 16, a lease is defined as a
contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the
right to use an asset (the underlying asset) for a
period of time in exchange for consideration. A
contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time when the
customer, throughout the period of use, has both:
(a) the right to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from use of the identified asset
and (b) the right to direct the use of the identified
asset.
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(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1
April 2019 (Continued)

HKFRS 16 — Leases (Continued)

(i)

The new definition of a lease (Continued)

For a contract that contains a lease component
and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, a lessee shall allocate the
consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-
alone price of the lease component and the
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components, unless the lessee apply the practical
expedient which allows the lessee to elect, by
class of underlying asset, not to separate non-
lease components from lease components, and
instead account for each lease component and
any associated non-lease components as a single
lease component.

The Group has elected not to separate non-lease
components and account for all each lease
component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component for all
leases.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1
April 2019 (Continued)

HKFRS 16 — Leases (Continued)

(i)

Accounting as lessee

Under HKAS 17, a lessee has to classify a lease
as an operating lease or a finance lease based on
the extent to which risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of a lease asset lie with the lessor or
the lessee. If a lease is determined as an
operating lease, the lessee would recognise the
lease payments under the operating lease as an
expense over the lease term. The asset under the
lease would not be recognised in the statement
of financial position of the lessee.

Under HKFRS 16, all leases (irrespective of they
are operating leases or finance leases) are
required to be capitalised in the statement of
financial position as right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities, but HKFRS 16 provides accounting
policy choices for an entity to choose not to
capitalise (i) leases which are short-term leases
and/or (i) leases for which the underlying asset is
of low-value. The Group has elected not to
recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
for low-value assets and leases for which at the
commencement date have a lease term less than
12 months. The lease payments associated with
those leases have been expensed on straight-line
basis over the lease term.

The Group recognised a right-of-use asset and a
lease liability at the commencement date of a
lease.
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(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1
April 2019 (Continued)

HKFRS 16 — Leases (Continued)

(i)

Accounting as lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at
cost and would comprise: (i) the amount of the
initial measurement of the lease liability (see below
for the accounting policy to account for lease
liability); (i) any lease payments made at or before
the commencement date, less any lease
incentives received; (i) any initial direct costs
incurred by the lessee and (iv) an estimate of
costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling
and removing the underlying asset to the
condition required by the terms and conditions of
the lease, unless those costs are incurred to
produce inventories. The Group measures the
right-of-use assets applying a cost model. Under
the cost model, the Group measures the right-of-
use asset at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liability.

Lease liability

The lease liability should be recognised at the
present value of the lease payments that are not
paid at the date of commencement of the lease.
The lease payments shall be discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can
be readily determined. If that rate cannot be
readily determined, the Group shall use the
Group’s incremental borrowing rate.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

(a)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1
April 2019 (Continued)

HKFRS 16 — Leases (Continued)

(i)

Accounting as lessee (Continued)
Lease liability (Continued)

The following payments for the right to use the
underlying asset during the lease term that are
not paid at the commencement date of the lease
are considered to be lease payments: (i) fixed
payments less any lease incentives receivable: (i)
variable lease payments that depend on an index
or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate
as at commencement date; (i) amounts expected
to be payable by the lessee under residual value
guarantees; (iv) the exercise price of a purchase
option if the lessee is reasonably certain to
exercise that option and (v) payments of penalties
for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects
the lessee exercising an option to terminate the
lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, a lessee
shall measure the lease liability by: (i) increasing
the carrying amount to reflect interest on the
lease liability; (i) reducing the carrying amount to
reflect the lease payments made; and (iii)
remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any
reassessment or lease modifications, e.g., a
change in future lease payments arising from
change in an index or rate, a change in the lease
term, a change in the in substance fixed lease
payments or a change in assessment to purchase
the underlying asset.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
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100

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1
April 2019 (Continued)

HKFRS 16 — Leases (Continued)

(v)

Transition

As mentioned above, the Group has applied
HKFRS 16 using the cumulative effect approach
and recognised all the cumulative effect of initially
applying HKFRS 16 as an adjustment to the
opening balance of retained earnings at the date
of initial application (1 April 2019). The
comparative information presented in 2018/19
has not been restated and continues to be
reported under HKAS 17 and related
interpretations as allowed by the transition
provision in HKFRS 16.

The Group has applied the follow practical
expedients: (i) applied a single discount rate to a
portfolio of leases with reasonably similar
characteristics; (i) applied the exemption of not to
recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
for leases with term that will end within 12 months
of the date of initial application (1 April 2019) and
accounted for those leases as short-term leases;
(iii) exclude the initial direct costs from the
measurement of the right-of-use asset at 1 April
2019 and (iv) used hindsight in determining the
lease terms if the contracts contain options to
extend or terminate the leases.

In addition, the Group has also applied the
practical expedients such that: (i) HKFRS 16 is
applied to all of the Group’s lease contracts that
were previously identified as leases applying
HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease and (i)
not to apply HKFRS 16 to contracts that were not
previously identified as containing a lease under
HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

(a)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1
April 2019 (Continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 — Uncertainty over Income
Tax Treatments

The Interpretation supports the requirements of HKAS
12, Income Taxes, by providing guidance over how to
reflect the effects of uncertainty in accounting for
income taxes.

Under the Interpretation, the entity shall determine
whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment
separately or together based on which approach better
predicts the resolution of the uncertainty. The entity
shall also assume the tax authority will examine
amounts that it has a right to examine and have full
knowledge of all related information when making those
examinations. If the entity determines it is probable that
the tax authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment,
then the entity should measure current and deferred tax
in line with its tax filings. If the entity determines it is not
probable, then the uncertainty in the determination of
tax is reflected using either the “most likely amount” or
the “expected value” approach, whichever better
predicts the resolution of the uncertainty.

Amendments to HKFRS 9 — Prepayment
Features with Negative Compensation

The amendments clarify that prepayable financial assets
with negative compensation can be measured at
amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income if specified conditions are met
— instead of at fair value through profit or loss.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

102

(a)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1
April 2019 (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 19 — Plan amendments,
curtailment or settlement

The amendments clarify that on amendment,
curtailment or settlement of a defined benefit plan, a
company should use updated actuarial assumptions to
determine its current service cost and net interest for
the period. Additionally, the effect of the asset ceiling is
disregarded when calculating the gain or loss on any
settlement of the plan and is dealt with separately in
other comprehensive income.

Amendments to HKAS 28 — Long-term
Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures

The amendment clarifies that HKFRS 9 applies to long-
term interests (“LTI”) in associates or joint ventures
which form part of the net investment in the associates
or joint ventures and stipulates that HKFRS 9 is applied
to these LTI before the impairment losses guidance
within HKAS 28.

IBI Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019/2020

2. RNBERUBREEAN(EEMBRSE
2R 1) (&)

(a)

R RET BB BREEL — 5
“E-AFONA-HEBERE

BEBE ERIF19FIETE — &t BIEAT
A 760 55 18

BRABRIARE - IMER] - MRRBEER
BAGH IR - AEEERKIIEERRNAE
FEEE RIS A R BRFEFR S o peoh - 1
ArETAZA e R RSB ERE - TF
BEELRZZE  THEHMEEWSATE
BERIE o

BEBE I ERFE 28 HI55TE — RBEERT
REELEN R EL

(ERTAEE - BN B RS LR EHE
EHERNBERTRRSELEZFRE—
MOMNBEERRINAERLE L RAER
([REERE])  WREEBMFREERSE
OMALN BB G ERIZE 2857 2 B EEE
EoIRREZSRELR

5 8



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE—F-_FTF=FA=1+—HIFFZ

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

(a)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1
April 2019 (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle — Amendments to HKFRS 3, Business
Combinations

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to standards where they are currently unclear.
They include amendments to HKFRS 3 which clarifies
that when a joint operator of a business obtains control
over a joint operation, this is a business combination
achieved in stages and the previously held equity
interest should therefore be remeasured to its
acquisition date fair value.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle — Amendments to HKFRS 11, Joint
Arrangements

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to standards where they are currently unclear.
They include amendments to HKFRS 11 which clarify
that when a party that participates in, but does not have
joint control of, a joint operation which is a business
and subsequently obtains joint control of the joint
operation, the previously held equity interest should not
be remeasured to its acquisition date fair value.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

104

(a)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1
April 2019 (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle — Amendments to HKAS 12, Income
Taxes

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to standards where they are currently unclear.
They include amendments to HKAS 12 which clarify
that all income tax consequences of dividends are
recognised consistently with the transactions that
generated the distributable profits, either in profit or
loss, other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle — Amendments to HKAS 23, Borrowing
Costs

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to standards where they are currently unclear.
They include amendments to HKAS 23 which clarifies
that a borrowing made specifically to obtain a qualifying
asset which remains outstanding after the related
qualifying asset is ready for its intended use or sale
would become part of the funds an entity borrows
generally and therefore included in the general pool.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

(b) New or revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant
to the Group’s financial statements, have been issued,
but are not yet effective and have not been early
adopted by the Group. The Group’s current intention is
to apply these changes on the date they become
effective.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business'

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material’
and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKFRS 9,  Interest Rate Benchmark Reform’

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts?
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2020

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021

8 The amendments were originally intended to be effective for

periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. The effective
date has now been deferred/removed. Early application of
the amendments continue to be permitted.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

106

(b)

New or revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 — Definition of a
business

The amendments clarify that a business must include,
as a minimum, an input and a substantive process that
together significantly contribute to the ability to create
outputs, together with providing extensive guidance on
what is meant by a “substantive process”.

Additionally, the amendments remove the assessment
of whether market participants are capable of replacing
any missing inputs or processes and continuing to
produce outputs, whilst narrowing the definition of
“outputs” and a “business” to focus on returns from
selling goods and services to customers, rather than on
cost reductions.

An optional concentration test has also been added
that permits a simplified assessment of whether an
acquired set of activities and assets is not a business.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 —
Definition of material

The amendments clarify the definition and explanation
of “material”, aligning the definition across all HKFRS
Standards and the Conceptual Framework, and
incorporating supporting requirements in HKAS 1 into
the definition.

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS
7 — Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

The amendments modify some specific hedge
accounting requirements to provide relief from potential
effects of the uncertainties caused by interest rate
benchmark reform. In addition, the amendments require
companies to provide additional information to investors
about their hedging relationships which are directly
affected by these uncertainties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE—F-_FTF=FA=1+—HIFFZ

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

(b)

New or revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 17 — Insurance Contracts

HKFRS 17 will replace HKFRS 4 as a single principle-
based standard for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of insurance contracts in
the financial statements of the issuers of those
contracts.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 — Sale
or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify the extent of gains or losses to
be recognised when an entity sells or contributes
assets to its associate or joint venture. When the
transaction involves a business the gain or loss is
recognised in full, conversely when the transaction
involves assets that do not constitute a business the
gain or loss is recognised only to the extent of the
unrelated investors’ interests in the joint venture or
associate.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of other new and revised HKFRSs will have
no material impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements in the future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE—T_TF=FA=+—HIFFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

108

(a)

(b)

(c)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred to as the
“HKFRS”) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition, the financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”).

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis.

Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is the same as the
functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries
other than IBI Macau Limited, and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise stated.

IBI Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019/2020
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE—F-_FTF=FA=1+—HIFFZ

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

Basis of consolidation and subsidiaries

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Company and subsidiaries.
Inter-company transactions and balances between
group companies together with unrealised profits are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of impairment
on the asset transferred, in which case the loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is
able to exercise control. The Company controls an
investee if all three of the following elements are
present: power over the investee, exposure, or rights,
to variable returns from the investee, and the ability to
use its power to affect those variable returns. Control is
reassessed whenever facts and circumstances indicate
that there may be a change in any of these elements of
control.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other costs, such as repairs and
maintenance are recognised as an expense in profit or
loss during the financial period in which they are
incurred.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

110

(b)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to
write off their cost net of expected residual value over
their estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The
useful lives, residual value and depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period. The estimated useful lives are as
follows:

Furniture and fixtures
Office equipment
and fittings

5 years
3-5 years or over the leases
terms, whichever the shorter

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s
estimated recoverable amount (Note 4(m)).

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from the continued use
of the asset.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property,
plant and equipment is the difference between the net
sale proceeds and its carrying amount, and is
recognised in profit or loss on disposal.

IBI Group Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE MR mR M

For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE—F-_FTF=FA=1+—HIFFZ

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(c)

Financial instruments

(i)

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable
without a significant financing component) is
initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not
measured at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL”), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade
receivable without a significant financing
component is initially measured at the transaction
price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade date, that is,
the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirely when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are two
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments measured at:
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

112

(c)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)
Debt instruments (Continued)

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Financial assets
at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest rate method. Interest
income, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any
gain on derecognition is recognised in profit or
loss.

“FVTPL”: Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss include financial assets held for
trading, financial assets designated upon initial
recognition at fair value through profit or loss, or
financial assets mandatorily required to be
measured at fair value. Financial assets are
classified as held for trading if they are acquired
for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the
near term. Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified as held
for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments. Financial assets with cash
flows that are not solely payments of principal and
interest are classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss, irrespective of the business
model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt
instruments to be classified at amortised cost or
at fair value through other comprehensive income,
as described above, debt instruments may be
designated at fair value through profit or loss on
initial recognition if doing so eliminates, or
significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch.

IBI Group Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE—F-_FTF=FA=1+—HIFFZ

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(c)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)
Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment that
is not held for trading, the Group has not elect to
present subsequent changes in the investment’s
fair value in other comprehensive income. All
equity instruments are classified as FVTPL,
whereby changes in fair value, dividends and
interest income are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for
expected credit losses (“ECLs”) on trade
receivables, contract assets, financial assets
measured at amortised cost. The ECLs are
measured on either of the following bases: (1) 12
months ECLs: these are the ECLs that result from
possible default events within the 12 months after
the end of reporting period; and (2) lifetime ECLs:
these are ECLs that result from all possible default
events over the expected life of a financial
instrument. The maximum period considered
when estimating ECLs is the maximum
contractual period over which the Group is
exposed to credit risk.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the
difference between all contractual cash flows that
are due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive. The shortfall is then
discounted at an approximation to the assets’
original effective interest rate.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
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(c)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

The Group has elected to measure loss
allowances for trade receivables and contract
assets using HKFRS 9 simplified approach and
has calculated ECLs based on lifetime ECLs. The
Group has established a provision matrix that is
based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are
based on the 12 months ECLs. However, when
there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since origination, the allowance will be based on
the lifetime ECLs.

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of
default occurring on the financial instrument
assessed at the reporting date with that assessed
at the date of initial recognition.

When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition and when estimating ECLs, the
Group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without
undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information analysis,
based on the Group’s historical experience and
informed credit assessment and including
forward-looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a
financial asset has increased significantly if the
contractual payments are more than 90 days past
due.

IBI Group Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE—F-_FTF=FA=1+—HIFFZ

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(c)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

The Group considers a financial asset to be
credit-impaired when: (1) the borrower is unlikely
to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full,
without recourse by the Group to actions such as
realising security (if any is held); or (2) the financial
asset is more than 365 days past due.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets
is calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the
gross carrying amount less loss allowance) of the
financial asset. For non-credit-impaired financial
assets interest income is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the liabilities
were incurred. Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are initially measured at fair
value and financial liabilities at amortised costs
are initially measured at fair value, net of directly
attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including
trade and other payables, borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method. The related interest
expense is recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the amortisation process.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

116

(c)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest
income or interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
or payments through the expected life of the
financial asset or liability, or where appropriate, a
shorter period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when
the contractual rights to the future cash flows in
relation to the financial asset expire or when the
financial asset has been transferred and the
transfer meets the criteria for derecognition in
accordance with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

IBI Group Holdings Limited
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Financial instruments (Continued)
(vi) Derecognition (Continued)

Where the Group issues its own equity
instruments to a creditor to settle a financial
liability in whole or in part as a result of
renegotiating the terms of that liability, the equity
instruments issued are the consideration paid and
are recognised initially and measured at their fair
value on the date the financial liability or part
thereof is extinguished. If the fair value of the
equity instruments issued cannot be reliably
measured, the equity instruments are measured
to reflect the fair value of the financial liability
extinguished. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability or part thereof
extinguished and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss for the year.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand,
demand deposits and short-term, high liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or
less that are readily convertible into known amount of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

Leasing (accounting policies applied from 1
April 2019)

All leases (irrespective of they are operating leases or
finance leases) are required to be capitalised in the
statement of financial position as right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities, but accounting policy choices exist
for an entity to choose not to capitalise (i) leases which
are short-term leases and/or (ii) leases for which the
underlying asset is of low-value. The Group has elected
not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
for low-value assets and leases for which at the
commencement date have a lease term less than 12
months. The lease payments associated with those
leases have been expensed on straight-line basis over
the lease term.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
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(e)

Leasing (accounting policies applied from 1
April 2019) (Continued)

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at cost
and would comprise: (i) the amount of the initial
measurement of the lease liability (see below for the
accounting policy to account for lease liability); (i) any
lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received; (i) any initial
direct costs incurred by the lessee and (iv) an estimate
of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and
removing the underlying asset to the condition required
by the terms and conditions of the lease, unless those
costs are incurred to produce inventories. Under cost
model, the Group measures the right-to-use at cost,
less any accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liability. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease terms
and estimated useful lives of the assets.

Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present value of
the lease payments that are not paid at the date of
commencement of the lease. The lease payments are
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if
that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot
be readily determined, the Group uses the Group’s
incremental borrowing rate.

The following payments for the right-to-use the
underlying asset during the lease term that are not paid
at the commencement date of the lease are considered
to be lease payments: (i) fixed payments less any lease
incentives receivable: (i) variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using
the index or rate as at commencement date; (iii)
amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under
residual value guarantees; (iv) the exercise price of a
purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to
exercise that option and (v) payments of penalties for
terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the
lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE—F-_FTF=FA=1+—HIFFZ

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(e)

()

(9)

Leasing (accounting policies applied from 1
April 2019) (Continued)

Lease liability (Continued)

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group
measures the lease liability by: (i) increasing the carrying
amount to reflect interest on the lease liability; (ii)
reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease
payments made; and (iii) remeasuring the carrying
amount to reflect any reassessment or lease
modifications, e.g., a change in future lease payments
arising from change in an index or rate, a change in the
lease term, a change in the in substance fixed lease
payments or a change in assessment to purchase the
underlying asset.

Leasing (accounting policies applied until 31
March 2019)

The total rentals payable under the operating leases are
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the lease term. Lease incentives received are
recognised as an integrated part of the total rental
expense, over the term of the lease.

Income taxes
Income taxes comprise current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
deductible for income tax purposes and is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

120

(9)

Income taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except
for recognised assets and liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profits, deferred tax liabilities are
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates appropriate to
the expected manner in which the carrying amount of
the asset or liability is realised or settled and that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
reporting period.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except
when they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income in which case the taxes are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or when
they relate to items recognised directly in equity in
which case the taxes are also recognised directly in
equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE—F-_FTF=FA=1+—HIFFZ

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(h)

Foreign currency

Transactions entered into by group entities in currencies
other than the currency of the primary economic
environment in which they operate (the “functional
currency”) are recorded at the rates ruling when the
transactions occur. Foreign currency monetary assets
and liabilities are translated at the rates ruling at the end
of reporting period. Non-monetary items carried at fair
value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value
are included in profit or loss for the period except for
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary
items in respect of which gains and losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income, in which
case, the exchange differences are also recognised in
other comprehensive income.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

122

(h)

Foreign currency (Continued)

On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the average
exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case,
the rates approximating to those ruling when the
transactions took place are used. All assets and
liabilities of foreign operations are translated at the rate
ruling at the end of reporting period. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity as
foreign exchange reserve. Exchange differences
recognised in profit or loss of group entities’ separate
financial statements on the translation of long-term
monetary items forming part of the Group’s net
investment in the foreign operation concerned are
reclassified to other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity as foreign exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
exchange differences recognised in the foreign
exchange reserve relating to that operation up to the
date of disposal are reclassified to profit or loss as part
of the profit or loss on disposal.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE—F-_FTF=FA=1+—HIFFZ

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

() Employee benefits

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Defined contribution retirement plan

Contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans are recognised as an expense in profit or
loss when the services are rendered by the
employees.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and
only when, the Group demonstrably commits
itself to terminate employment or to provide
benefits as a result of voluntary redundancy by
having a detailed formal plan which is without
realistic possibility of withdrawal.

Other employee entitlements

Short term employee benefits are employee
benefits (other than termination benefits) that are
expected to be settled wholly before twelve
months after the end of the annual reporting
period in which the employees render the related
service. Short term employee benefits are
recognised in the year when the employees
render the related service.

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to the employees.
A provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.
Employee entitlements to sick leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EREFTEER (HE)
(CONTINUED)
(i) Employee benefits (Continued) (i) EEENE)
(iv) Share-based payments (iv) LRGBEFELTF

124

Where share options are awarded to employees
and others providing similar services, the fair
value of the services received is measured by
reference to the fair value of the options at the
date of grant. Such fair value is recognised in
profit or loss over the vesting period with a
corresponding increase in the share option
reserve within equity. Non-market vesting
conditions are taken into account by adjusting the
number of equity instruments expected to vest at
the end of each reporting period so that,
ultimately, the cumulative amount recognised
over the vesting period is based on the number of
options that eventually vest. Market vesting
conditions are factored into the fair value of the
options granted. As long as all non-market
vesting conditions are satisfied, a charge is made
irrespective of whether the market vesting
conditions are satisfied. The cumulative expense
is not adjusted for failure to achieve a market
vesting condition.

Where the terms and conditions of options are
modified before they vest, the increase in the fair
value of the options, measured immediately
before and after the modification, is also
recognised in profit or loss over the remaining
vesting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE MR mR M

For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE—F-_FTF=FA=1+—HIFFZ

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

1)

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes
value added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws
that apply to the contract, control of the goods or
service may be transferred over time or at a point in
time. Control of the goods or service is transferred over
time if the Group’s performance:

° provides all of the benefits received and
consumed simultaneously by the customer;

o creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

° does not create an asset with an alternative use
to the Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to
date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract
by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise,
revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the goods or service.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

126

0

Revenue recognition (Continued)

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides a significant financing benefit to the
customer for more than 12 months, revenue is
measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that
would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
with the customer, and interest income is accrued
separately under the effective interest method. Where
the contract contains a financing component which
provides a significant financing benefit to the Group,
revenue recognised under that contract includes the
interest expense accreted on the contract liabilities
under the effective interest method. For contracts
where the period between the payment and the transfer
of the promised goods or services is one year or less,
the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of a
significant financing component, using the practical
expedient in HKFRS 15.

(i) Revenue from Construction Services

Revenue from construction works transferred
over time is recognised progressively by reference
to the proportion of contract costs incurred to
date compared to expected total cost, which
depict the transfer of control of the goods or
services to the customer.

The Group recognises revenue over time only if it
can reasonably measure its progress toward
complete satisfaction of the performance
obligation. However, if the Group cannot
reasonably measure the outcome but expects to
recover the costs incurred in satisfying the
performance obligation, then it recognises
revenue to the extent of the costs incurred.

(ii) Other income
Interest income is accrued on a time basis on the

principal outstanding at the applicable interest
rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE MR mR M

For the year ended 31 March 2020
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(k)

Construction contracts
Contract assets and liabilities

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for services that the Group
has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. In contrast, a receivable represents the
Group’s unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only
the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration
is due) from the customer.

Contract asset is recognised when the Group
completes the construction works under such services
contracts but yet certified by architects, surveyors or
other representatives appointed by customers. Any
amount previously recognised as a contract asset is
reclassified to trade receivables at the point at which it
is invoiced to the customer. If the considerations
(including advances received from customers) exceeds
the revenue recognised to date under the input method
then the Group recognises a contract liability for the
difference.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

128

(k)

U]

Construction contracts (Continued)
Contract costs

The Group recognises an asset from the costs incurred
to fulfil a contract when those costs meet all of the
following criteria:

(@  the costs relate directly to a contract or to an
anticipated contract that the entity can specifically
identify;

(b)  the costs generate or enhance resources of the
entity that will be used in satisfying (or in
continuing to satisfy) performance obligations in
the future; and

(c) the costs are expected to be recovered.

The asset recognised is subsequently amortised to
profit or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent
with the transfer to the customer of the goods or
services to which the cost relate. The asset is subject
to impairment review.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, which will probably result in an outflow of
economic benefits that can be reasonably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, the
existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(m)

(n)

Impairment of assets (other than financial
assets)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets (applicable from 1 April 2019) to
determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss or an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists
or may have decreased. If the recoverable amount (i.e.
the greater of the fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use) of an asset is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss
is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately.

Value in use is based on the estimated future cash
flows expected to be derived from the asset,
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset.

Borrowings costs

Borrowings costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which
require a substantial period of time to be ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost
of those assets. Income earned on temporary
investments of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on those assets is deducted from
borrowings costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they are incurred.
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(o) Related parties

@

A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

(i)
(ii)
(i)

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of key management personnel
of the Group or the Company’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply:

)

(i)

(i)

V)

(viil)

the entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of the employees of the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in ().

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
key management personnel of the entity (or
of a parent of the entity).

the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Company.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020

Bz

4.

E_FFE-_H=+—HUFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(o) Related parties (Continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity and include:

()  that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

@iy dependents of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the
directors are required to make judgement, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to
be relevant. Actual results differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

EXETHBE(E)

(o) FEAmET ()
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MEBXE - B

)  ZALHFEREEBHFEHE
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

In addition to information disclosed elsewhere in these
financial statements, other key sources of estimation
uncertainty that have significant risks of resulting in material
adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within next financial year are as follows:

(i)

Recognition of contract revenue

Contract revenue recognition on individual projects are
dependent on management’s estimation of the
progress of the satisfaction of performance obligations
of a construction contract over time, measuring using
input method, with reference to the proportion that
contract costs incurred for work performed to date to
the estimated total costs for the contracts. The Group
reviews and revises the estimates of contract revenue,
contract costs, variation orders and contract claims
prepared for each contract as the contract progresses.
Budgeted contract income is determined in accordance
with the terms set out in the relevant contracts.
Budgeted contract costs which mainly comprise
subcontracting charges and cost of materials are
prepared by the management on the basis of
quotations from time to time provided by the major
contractors, suppliers or vendors involved and the
experience of the management. In order to keep the
budget accurate and up-to-date, the management
conducts periodic reviews on the management budgets
by comparing the budgeted amounts to the actual
amounts incurred and the value of work performed as
certified by quantity surveyors where applicable.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Impairment of receivables

The measurement of impairment losses on receivables
requires judgment, in particular, the estimation of the
amount and timing of future cash flows when
determining impairment losses and the assessment of a
significant increase in credit risk. These estimates are
driven by a number of factors, changes in which can
result in different levels of allowances.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
assesses whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk on receivables since initial recognition by
comparing the risk of default occurring over the
expected life. The Group considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available
without undue cost or effort for this purpose. This
includes both quantitative and qualitative information
and analysis, based on the Group’s historical
experience and informed credit assessment and
including forward-looking information.

Fair value measurement

The fair value measurement of the Group’s financial and
non-financial assets and liabilities utilises market
observable inputs and data as far as possible. Inputs
used in determining fair value measurements are
categorised into different levels based on how
observable the inputs used in the valuation technique
utilised are (the “fair value hierarchy”):

Level 1:  Quoted prices in active markets for identical
items (unadjusted);

Level 2: Observable direct or indirect inputs other
than Level 1 inputs;

Level 3:  Unobservable inputs (i.e. not derived from

market data).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
(iii) Fair value measurement (Continued)

The classification of an item into the above levels is
based on the lowest level of the inputs used that has a
significant effect on the fair value measurement of the
item. Transfers of items between levels are recognised
in the period they occur.

The Group measures listed equity investments (Note
17) at fair value.

For more detailed information in relation to the fair value
measurement of the item above, please refer to the
applicable note.

SEGMENT REPORTING

The executive directors of the Company, who are the chief
operating decision-makers of the Group, review the Group’s
internal reporting in order to assess performance and allocate
resources. Management has determined the operating
segments based on reports reviewed by the executive
directors of the Company that are used to make strategy
decision.

Management regularly reviews the operating results from a
project-based perspective. The reportable operating segment
derives its revenue primarily from provision of renovation
services as a main contractor for property projects in the
private sector in Hong Kong and Macau. Accordingly, the
Group has only one business segment and no further analysis
of this single segment is considered necessary.
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6. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 6. DEWME (&)
(a) Geographical information (a) HbiFER
The Group operates in two principal geographical areas AREFEMEZEHERELE — FBK
— Hong Kong and Macau. BT o
The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s TRV EBAEBFTAEEBYHREER
revenue from external customers within the scope of F 155 EE MR B INBE RSB D
HKFRS 15:

Hong Kong BB 538,347 575,388

Macau E18 52,782 18,060
591,129 593,448

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s TS EEAEFEERHEE ([EEFERK

non-current assets (“Specified non-current BEE ) MO

assets’):

Hong Kong &5 5,509 419

Macau P = -
5,509 419

The non-current assets information above excludes FiIERSEEERTEERATEN AR

financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and is ENEMEE  HVREBEEWEENERA

based on the physical locations of the respective BE|D o

assets.

1Bl Group Holdings Limited 135
2019/2020 F [Z k&



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE—T_TF=FA=+—HIFFE

6.

136

SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 6. DI E (&)
(b) Information about major customers (b) EBRXTEEFHNEHR
Revenue from major customers, where each of them KETEZEPHKR(REZS M ANEEFY
accounted for 10% or more of the Group’s revenue, are =AY 10% sk A B) Ealan T ¢
set out below:
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHIT
Customer | ZEI 110,539 N/ATiE A
Customer I ZEI 109,691 293,783
Customer Il ZEI 83,365 N/ATEF
REVENUE 7. W

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents
contract revenue from provision of renovation services as a
main contractor during the year. All the Group’s revenue is
derived from contracts with customers which is recognised
over time.

The Group has applied the practical expedient to its sales
contracts for Construction Services and therefore the below
information does not include information about revenue that
the Group will be entitled to when it satisfies the remaining
performance obligations under the contracts for Construction
Services that had an original expected duration of one year or
less.

As at 31 March 2020, the aggregated amount of the
transaction price allocated to the remaining performance
obligations under the Group’s existing contracts was
approximately HK$55,135,000 (2019: HK$116,395,000). This
amount represents revenue expected to be recognised in the
future from partially-completed long-term construction
contracts. The Group will recognise the expected revenue in
future as the project work is progressed, which is expected
to occur over the next ten months.
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8. OTHER INCOME AND GAIN 8. HMWARWKE

Bank interest income ERITFBUA 1,141 801
Fair value gain on financial assets BRATEFABENEREEZ
at fair value through profit or loss N ERE 57 -
1,198 801
9. FINANCE COSTS 9. BERAE

Interest expenses on lease liabilities HEBENF B 368 -

10. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. RATEBHBE X ANEF

Profit before income tax expense is arrived after charging: B PSR B S B ses ) Jh & H08 T 51| R T8 B E S -

Auditor’s remuneration % E A 7 B 900 900
Depreciation of property, ME - BB REETE

plant and equipment 327 1,099
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 2,029 -

Staff costs including directors’ emoluments: 8 TR (BIEESHH) ¢

— Salaries and allowances — ¥4 MoERL 69,607 59,737
— Contributions on defined contribution — FEEIGRIREHEIHR R
retirement plans 1,670 1,690
71,277 61,427
Short term leases expenses EHHEERY 855 -
Minimum lease payments for leases KRB IEEE 2T EL
previously classified as operating leases FITHEPBEALEHEN
under HKAS 17 HE 2 HEHERNK - 2,697
Foreign exchange gain, net M B 18 F 5 (144) -
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11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 11.

The amount of income tax expense in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

FriSHiB <

ReEakEtEERERMEMEHADRE

15 -

represents:
2020 2019
—E-EHE —=—NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAET
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax BNEATTE — BBEFIEH
— tax for the year — FRHIA 3,709 3,961
— over provision in respect of prior years ~ — BT [EBEEEHE 42) (60)
3,667 3,901
Current tax — overseas BNER®ITE — /85h
— tax for the year — FRFIA = -
3,667 3,901
The Hong Kong Government gazetted the “Inland Revenue BEABNR=ZZE—N\F=A=ThBHEEMH

(Amendment) (No. 3) Ordinance 2018” on 29 March 2018
which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates regime (the
“Regime”). Under the Regime, the first HK$2 million of profits
of qualifying corporations will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits
above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%.

For the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019, Hong Kong
Profits Tax is calculated in accordance with the Regime.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in Macau and
with the short-term tax incentives granted by the Macau
Government, the Group’s subsidiary in Macau was subject to
complementary tax at the rate of 12% for taxable profits over
the tax threshold of MOP600,000 for the tax year ended 31
December 2019. The Macau Government has not yet
announced the tax threshold for the tax year ending 31
December 2020.
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1. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 11.

The income tax for the year can be reconciled to the profit
before income tax expense in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income as follows:

FrE®imx ()

FNFT BB BIRA 2 E R R R AR R A
AR OHEMT

2020 2019
—BBF —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#&T FHIT
Profit before income tax expense K BT 18 55 5 2 A A 25,294 24,753
Tax charge calculated at Hong Kong profits  1#%& & RS H1 = 16.5% s+ E Y
tax rate of 16.5% (2019:16.5%) BB (ZFT—1F : 16.5%) 4,173 4,084
Tax effect of revenue not taxable BERBR DT B2
for tax purposes (514) (494)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible TAIB AT OB &
for tax purposes 486 528
Effect of different tax rate of the subsidiary ~ FEPILE & By KT /E A 7 A E
operating in Macau MEMFE (146) (102)
Over provision in respect of prior years BT FEEBRERE (42) (60)
Effect of the Regime ZHlEmR e (165) (165)
Utilisation of tax loss not recognised B AARERNBRIEEE (134) -
Tax effect of tax loss and other temporary R FE 2T I8 &5 18 2 H fth BT
differences not recognised EENBBEE 9 110
Income tax expense Fris®if &2 3,667 3,901

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had estimated unused tax
losses arising from the Group’s subsidiary in Macau of
approximately HK$430,000 (2019: HK$2,127,000) available
for offset against future profits. These tax losses are subject
to the final assessment by the tax authority in Macau. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of such
losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams from
the Group’s subsidiary in Macau. The tax losses may be
carried forward for a period of three years from the year of
origination.

No deferred tax has been provided in the consolidated
financial statements as no other material temporary
differences had risen during the years ended 31 March 2020
and 2019.

RZE-TF=ZA=+—8 AEERHAETEM
B B8~ B BT EE AE fik &t 2R E) AR B 18 /B 48 49 430,000
BT (T — N4 : 2,127,000 7T) AT 4K 85 R 2k
S ) o E%%ﬁlﬁﬁéﬂééﬁ,ﬁ&mﬂ%RM&FEJEZ&JHE
BAAMEE - AREETENAEERMWNEA

Y o 7 5 F ARR Wﬁéﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ)&ﬂ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ
BEE -FRBABBARELEFTERT =FHELE
Lo

HRBE-_FT_FTER-_FT-NF=ZA=1T—H
Jtiflﬁ?iﬁﬁﬁékﬁﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁ ESIEIN
B BwRREER AR -
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12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS, HIGHEST

PAID INDIVIDUALS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

(a)

140

Directors’ emoluments

Directors’ emoluments is disclosed as follows:

Year ended 31 March 2020

12. EEFMH S FMALIRSREEE

A

(a)

ESHM
EEHMENT

BE-E2_ZEH=-R=1+—HILEE

Contribution
Salaries, on defined
allowances contribution
and other Discretionary retirement
Fees benefits bonuses plans Total
#é 2HR ERMT
e Hit &7 MiETA RIAGTEIRR st
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
i FHT S S S S
Executive directors HITEE
Neil David HOWARD Neil David HOWARD 240 2,442 1,250 18 3,950
Steven Paul SMITHERS Steven Paul SMITHERS 240 2,322 1,250 18 3,830
Independent non-executive directors BV TEE
Richard Gareth WILLIAMS Richard Gareth WILLIAMS 240 - - - 240
Robert Peter ANDREWS Robert Peter ANDREWS 240 - - - 240
David John KENNEDY David John KENNEDY (i) 180 - - - 180
Lap Shek Eddie WONG TuA (] 60 - - - 60
Total st 1,200 4,764 2,500 36 8,500
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12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS, HIGHEST
PAID INDIVIDUALS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(@) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

Year ended 31 March 2019

12. EEH5M R FHALRSREERE
e ()

ESHM(E)

BE-ZEZ-NE=A=1+—HLEE

Executive directors HTEE

Neil David HOWARD Neil David HOWARD 240 2,361 1,000 18 3,619
Steven Paul SMITHERS Steven Paul SMITHERS 240 2,241 1,000 18 3,499
Independent non-executive directors B S /TEE

Richard Gareth WILLIAMS Richard Gareth WILLIAMS 240 - - - 240
Robert Peter ANDREWS Robert Peter ANDREWS 240 - - - 240
Lap Shek Eddie WONG Tuh 240 - - - 240
Total @t 1,200 4,602 2,000 36 7,838
Notes: 5T

(i) Lap Shek Eddie WONG resigned as independent non-
executive director of the Company on 30 June 2019.

(i) David John KENNEDY was appointed as independent non-
executive director of the Company on 30 June 2019.

(iii) During the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. In addition, none of the
directors waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during
the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019.

(i)

(i)

FUARE-NFRA=ZTRBERRRE
SIFERITES -

David John KENNEDYR =Z—AF A=+
HEZTAAARELIFNITES -

HE_Z-ZFR-_ZT-NF=A=+—HI
FE  AEEBEAESINTAHH - (FA
RSN ARE B8 SR S (E ARERAE -
N RBE_ZE-_ZFR_ZT—NLE=A
=+ — Bt FEREE SRESKRBRETMA
N o
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12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS, HIGHEST 12. ES55M  SEsFMAIRESREERE
PAID INDIVIDUALS AND SENIOR BN (&)
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(CONTINUED)
(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) EEBRSHFMAL
The five highest paid individuals for the year include two FA IEHEEFHALEBERA(ZE
(2019: two) directors. The emoluments of the remaining —NEFE WMRB)EZF-HHB=22(ZZF—AN
three (2019: three) non-director highest paid individuals FZRB)IEERSFTWALTRAAFEDN
for the year are as follows: T
2020 2019
e i —T-NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Salaries, allowances and other benefits ¥4 ~ 2B R HEMEF| 6,013 5,067
Contributions on defined contribution TEREHFGRIRET IR
retirement plans 54 54
6,067 5,121
The number of non-director highest paid individuals BE-_Z-_ZTFR-ZF-NF=A=+—H
whose emoluments felt within the following bands for IEFE  HFHNF T SENEESESH
the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019 is as follows: BHALEVAZIAT -
2020 2019
—ECoEE —T—h4E
No. of No. of
individuals individuals
A AZ
HK$Nil-HK$1,000,000 T T £ 1,000,000 57T - -
HK$1,000,001-HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 & 7T £ 1,500,000 77T - -
HK$1,500,001-HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 % 7T & 2,000,000 77T - 3
HK$2,000,001-HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 77T £ 2,500,000 /%8 7T 3 -
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12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS, HIGHEST
PAID INDIVIDUALS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

Five highest paid individuals (Continued)

The remaining highest paid individuals are directors of
the Company whose emoluments are reflected in the
analysis presented in Note 12(a) above.

During the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest
paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office. In
addition, none of the five highest paid individuals waived
or agreed to waive any emoluments during the years
ended 31 March 2020 and 2019.

Senior management’s emoluments
Emoluments paid or payable to members of senior

management who are not directors were within the
following bands:

12. EE5FMH S FMALIRSREERE

(&)

(b)

(c)

TERSHMAL ()

H#saimMATARARES  HFHR
X RE12() T 271 AT H Sk o

BE_T_ TR _FT-NF=ZA=t—H
HFE  AEERENAERSHMA L
FHEFEN - (ERRERIANSE B Y 82
B ERBERAE - LS REBE-T=F
FR-F-NFZA=+t"BULFERER
= F A TR R R B R -

BB EEER
FT5IRE :

HEIRE KB WEBNN

2020 2019
—BoBE —T-NF
No. of No. of
individuals individuals
AE AZ

HK$Nil-HK$1,000,000

HK$1,000,001-HK$ 1,500,000
HK$1,500,001-HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001-HK$2,500,000

T AL ZE 1,000,000 57T -
1,000,001 7T 2 1,500,000 7T 1
1,500,001 /& 7T 2= 2,000,000 78 7T
2,000,001 T E 2,500,000 7% 7T

1
w = |
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=

13.

14.

144

—E_FFE= A= —AIEE

DIVIDENDS 13. RE
2020 2019
—p-r —T-nE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHETT
Interim dividend declared and paid (Note () 25 & & &~ o HAR% B, (B3 () 8,000 8,000
Proposed final dividend (Note (ii)) E % o HAR B (B 5E (i) - 12,000
8,000 20,000
Notes: P
0] The interim dividend in respect of the financial year ended 31 0] BE-Z 72% A=Z+—HIMBRFEHP KRS
March 2020 of HK 1.0 cent (2019: HK 1.0 cent) per ordinary share, EBEREEE1.0BI(ZZE—AF - 1.0/80) - ED/\
amounting to HK$8.0 million (2019: HK$8.0 million) was paid on HE0EBAL(ZE—NF :80EEET)  BRZ
16 January 2020. ZoTFE-RAHRARR ©
(ii) The directors of the Company do not recommend the payment of (ii) AAREETEEMBE T -_TF=A=1+—HIt
a final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2020. FREIRMN RS -
The final dividend in respect of the financial year ended 31 March ai— E-NFE=A=+—BIHBREENRGKRE
2019 of HK1.5 cents per ordinary share, amounting to HK$12.0 FREBEEISBIN(EHI208EAT) DN -Z
million was paid on 18 October 2019 and was recognised in the —hE+A+NBERN WREBEE-_ZE-_=F=A1
year ended 31 March 2020. The final dividend in respect of the Zt+—BLFERR -BE_T—N\FZA=1+— EI
financial year ended 31 March 2018 of HK2.5 cents per ordinary B EENRAKREGREBER25BI(A &
share, amounting to HK$20.0 million was paid on 18 October 200BEBL)ERN - N\F+A+N\HIKN I
2018 and was recognised in the year ended 31 March 2019. REBE-_E—NE=-A=+—HIEE®R-
EARNINGS PER SHARE 14. SREF

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended
31 March 2020 is based on the profit attributable to owners
of the Company of approximately HK$21,627,000 (2019:
approximately HK$20,852,000) and on the weighted average
number of 800,000,000 (2019: 800,000,000) ordinary shares
in issue during the year.

Dilutive earnings per share is the same as the basic earnings
per share because the Group had no dilutive potential shares
for the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019.

IBI Group Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B ISR R M R

For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE—F-_FTF=FA=1+—HIFFZ

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. Y% - BERZE
Office
Furniture equipment
and fixtures and fittings Total
FREREEHEE WARBRERS et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T T
Cost R
At 1 April 2018 R-E—N\FWOA—H 11 6,071 6,082
Additions NE - 202 202
Disposals HE (11) (108) (114)
At 31 March 2019 RZE—-NF=ZA=+—H - 6,170 6,170
Additions NE - 141 141
Disposals HE - 91) ©1)
At 31 March 2020 RZZEZTF=HA=+—H - 6,220 6,220
Accumulated depreciation B E
At 1 April 2018 RZE—N\FMH—H 8 4,758 4,766
Charge for the year FRAZ 3 1,096 1,099
Disposals & (11) (103) (114)
At 31 March 2019 RZE—NF=ZA=+—H - 5,751 5,751
Charge for the year FARXZ - 327 327
Disposals HE - 91) @1
At 31 March 2020 RZE-_EF=A=+—H - 5,987 5,987
Net carrying value REFEE
At 31 March 2020 RZZEZTF=HA=+—H - 233 233
At 31 March 2019 RZE-hF=A=+—H - 419 419
16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 16. FHRREEE

The underlying net book value of right-of-use assets
recognised relate to the following types of assets:

Properties leased for own use, carried at
depreciated cost

BRREAREENIENRIFEE T EER
BIAH -

HAEEYE  RIFERARTIR

HK$’000

FH&IT

At 1 April 2019 (Note 2(a)) RZZE—NFMNA—H (HE2@) -
Additions NE 7,305
Depreciation e (2,029
At 31 March 2020 N-E-_ZTF=/F=+—H 5,276

1Bl Group Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE—T_TF=FA=+—HIFFE

17. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

17. BAFEFTAEEZENEREE

2020 2019
—E-EF —T—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAET

Listed equity investments at fair value: ERAKRE - BATE
Listed in Hong Kong REA LT 3,920 -
Listed outside Hong Kong REBRINET 8,636 -
12,556 -

18. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT
LIABILITIES

The following table sets out details of the contract assets and

18. ENEERGHNERE

TREVNRERERERGNEERGNBEH

contract liabilities as at the end of each reporting period: 15
2020 2019
—E-EHE —=-hF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
F#&x THIT

Costs incurred to date plus recognised S EEEMKANE #R

profits less recognised losses & AR E RERR BT 1,342,679 1,225,007
Less: Progress billings to date e S IRREER (1,257,761) (1,066,586)
Add: Retention receivables (Note (i) ho s FEMUR B kI8 (HIEE ) 39,424 31,863
124,342 190,284
Contract assets BHEE 144,068 190,284
Contract liabilities AHEE (19,726) -
124,342 190,284

All contract assets and contract liabilities are arisen from the
provision of renovation services. The changes in the contract
assets and contract liabilities for the year were resulted from
the pace of the progress of particular projects and the timing
of approval for progress billing application for certain projects.

Note:

(i) As at 31 March 2020, the Group’s retention receivables were not
yet past due, in which approximately HK$3,460,000 (2019:
HK$2,934,000) were expected to be recovered beyond twelve
months after the end of the reporting period.

IBI Group Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE—F-_FTF=FA=1+—HIFFZ

18. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT 18. EHEEREGHNER(E)

LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of
contract assets are as follows:

Construction services

The Group’s contract assets represent the Group’s right to
consideration for work completed but not yet billed to
customers at the reporting date. The contract assets are
transferred to trade receivables when the rights become
unconditional, that is, when the Group issue progress billings
to customers based certified amount agreed with customer.
The contracts usually include a term for the customers to
hold up a portion, normally around 10.0%, from each
progress and final payment until a particular percentage of
the total contract sum is reached. Such sum of money
withheld is referred to as retention money. This amount is
included in contract assets until the end of the retention
period as the Group’s entitlement to this final payment is
conditional on the Group’s work satisfactorily passing
inspection.

When the Group receives a deposit before construction
services is rendered, this will give rise to contract liabilities at
the beginning of a contract, until the revenue recognised on
the relevant contract exceeds the amount of the deposit.

Movement in contract liabilities:

TEANEESHEMAIMFIGRFNT
BER

AEENENEERAKERRN RS AR RT
BRAZPFENTREIMKEEN - ZHEE
BARREGER  SREEBREZEHREN
B AAEEEREATFPHENEEATPRAA
TREEHEREE AOATRERREFARMETRE
R BN RIBE 2 5 FIA(— MK #10.0%)
EEEINBEOSENRHTE DL R IEMERR -
BEREHFARARES AAKEESUHER
RHEREIRE R B 768 B A2 (B i i@ 80R1 18 77 7]
FE BUHESHEAHAARNEE  EEREBEHER
Lk

i A8 S= B AR R E RIS AT ERIZ & - B E
BRABERAHNFARERKESL  EERMEHEE
HFTERN RS BERE BRI

2020 2019

—ECEF —E-NF

HK$’000 HK$'000

TFET T

Balance as at 1 April R A — B Ess - -
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of KR EEE 8)FE U R TEE R

billing in advance of construction activites & 49 & &0 19,726 -

Balance as at 31 March R=A=+—BW&H% 19,726 -
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=

—=F

—EF=H=+—HIFFE

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

19. ESZ R HARWFRR

2020 2019
—B-BF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHETT
Trade receivables (Notes (i) and (ii)) B 5 e Wk Ia (BT ) B (i) 23,670 38,739
Deposits and other receivables e &E@JE WRIE 1,369 1,498
Prepayments AN B 324 395
25,363 40,632
Notes: o
0] The credit period granted to customers on final and progress 0] BYPREPHIEFBRIREERNERBE RN 7%
billings is generally between 14 and 60 days from the invoice date. SHEER 14j:60 He
(i) The ageing analysis of trade receivables (net of allowances) as at (i) AEREBR - BEHEBHE(HNREE) ZREER
the end of each reporting period based on the invoice date is as BRRBRER AT AT ¢
follows:
2020 2019
—ECEF —ZE-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHTT
Within 30 days 30HA 23,000 33,089
31-60 days 31ZE60H 670 770
61-90 days 61Z290H - -
Over 90 days B0 H - 4,880
23,670 38,739
The age analysis of trade receivables (net of allowances) as of the HERESEAREE AL EER S ERRENE S ERZKE

148

end of reporting period that are not individually nor collectively
considered to be impaired is as follows:

(BRBUE) MR DT T

2020 2019

et Sp 3 —T-NF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTHERT FAT

Neither past due nor impaired B 480 B 7 AR (E 21,220 33,089
Less than 1 month past due BELRAEA 2,450 770
1 to 3 months past due BT = 3E A - 4,335
Over 3 months past due EHRS{E A £ = 545
2,450 5,650

23,670 38,739

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired primarily RIS 380 ER 7R (B 6 B 5 I8 MR 3 22 BT BRI 58 4D Rl 8

relate to the Group’s main customers for whom there was no
recent history of default.

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good track record
with the Group. Based on past experience, management believe
that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these
balances as there have not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

IBI Group Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
R T -TF=F=+—HIFE

20. PLEDGED DEPOSITS

21.

20. BIEBER

Pledged deposits with a bank PREBITHE EIFER 2,036 -
Pledged deposits with an insurer PNRB AR IKIRFER 14,100 16,200
16,136 16,200

Pledged deposits are placed with a bank and an insurer as
securities for the performance bonds issued by the bank and
insurer to certain customers on their projects. The pledged
deposits will be released when the bank or insurer are
satisfied that no claims will arise from the projects under the
performance bonds.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

EERMERTFRRRITRERAR] - FRZERTT
RRBABRETEPHNIEE MEEHNEOR
EWER - EEFERENBRRTRRR A A
EMEXNRE THIEEB TNEELRER T AR -

21. EZREMENRE

Trade payables (Note (i)) B S FEMFIE (W) 27,110 10,716
Accruals for costs of contract work BHTREMAETER 172,586 172,919
Retention payables (Note (i) JE TR B8 3R A (BT 2 (i) 31,668 32,436
Other payables and accruals H M ENFIARERTE R 6,685 6,465

238,049 222,536

Notes:

M

The ageing analysis of trade payables, based on invoice date, as
at the end of each reporting period is as follows:

MR

() REBEEE  BPETRAREEDROERA T
W -

0-30 days 0% 30H 26,271 10,112
31-60 days 31E60H 118 408
61-90 days 61E90H 329 -
Over 90 days B0 H 392 196

27,110 10,716

The credit period granted by suppliers is generally between 14 and
60 days from the invoice date and subcontractors is generally
within 14 days after receipt of payment from customers.

HERRTOERH RN FERAPEAN14Z60
AEABEETHERR—RAKCEPNRIEK 14
A e
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—E-—FFEZAA—HIFE

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 21. ESRHEMENRIE(E)

(CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued) MisE : (&)

(ii) As at 31 March 2020, retention payables of approximately (i) R-ZE-_TF=ZA=+—H ENREIELY
HK$9,269,000 (2019: HK$7,542,000) were expected to be settled 9,269,000 7T (= ZF — L4 : 7,542,000 7T ) T8 B
beyond twelve months after the end of the reporting period. REEHR BB+ (@B BEN -

LEASE LIABILITIES 22, FHEESE

The Group adopted HKFRS 16 from 1 April 2019 without REFH -_ZET—HWFENA—BRENEBHUER

restatement of comparative figures. As explained in Note 2(a), EAER|E165E MUY ESF| L E T o KT

the Group applied the transitional requirements as at 1 April 2 TR - AEBE T —AFUA—HIEER

2019. The accounting policies applied subsequent to the EENERT RNUBRERBE(ZZ=—NFMNA—

date of initial application of 1 April 2019 are disclosed in Note B)EERZ ST RMNME4(e) RIKEE °

4(e).

The Group has lease contracts for office premises and REFBBRERAEZWENE Eﬂ’ﬁﬁgéi\’] o N

warehouse. Leases of office premises and warehouse EYENRERAENHER RN T —ZE=F "

generally have lease terms ranging from one to three years MmMAEAEHRNZBENTAERTE E':F‘ [RER  NES
and lease payments are fixed over the lease terms. Two of MERBEENHESLHF ’EELEL&% EH3t
the lease contracts for office premises includes an extension STEHEaGENMFREEEMS ST AEERR -
option which have been included in lease terms for

calculations of lease liabilities and right-of-use assets.

HK$'000
FAT

At 1 April 2019 R-E—NFWMHA—H -

Additions NE 7,305

Interest expense e 368

Lease payment HERZK (2,094)

At 31 March 2020 RZZE_TF=A=+—H 5,579

Classified under: DA

Current portion mENE D 2,467

Non-current portion EmENEB 3,112

5,579

IBI Group Holdings Limited
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mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2020
R T -TF=F=+—HIFE

22, LEASE LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 22, HESEE)

Future lease payments are due as follow: ARBEERNZZENERABHLT ¢

Not later than one year —F LA 2,758 291 2,467
Later than one year and not later ~ — LA F{BARER
than two years 2,757 118 2,639
Later than two years and not later LA FBRAFR
than five years 475 2 473
5,990 411 5,579

Short term lease expenses EHHEERY 855
The lease payments recognised as an expenses under HKAS BIEE S ERNFE17TERZ2ABIHRENK
17 are as follows: mE

Minimum lease payments HEMERK 2,697

1Bl Group Holdings Limited 151
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE—T_TF=FA=+—HIFFE

22. LEASE LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

Operating lease commitment as at 31 March 2019
under HKAS 17

The Group had commitments for future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases which fall
due during the period as follow:

22. HESE (H&)

BREERETFEAEI1TREER=-S—-NEF=A
=t-B2EEHERRE

AEENTAREHKEHEHEE N2 ARKEEE
RIRGRFE TR LA T BRI B8R -

2019
—ZT-NFE
HK$’000
F#IT

Within one year
In the second to fifth years inclusive

—FR
F_EFhF(BREEMTF) -

350

350

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for its office premises and warehouse. Leases were
negotiated for terms ranging from one to three years with
fixed rentals over the terms of the leases.

23. SHARE CAPITAL

The share capital as at 31 March 2020 and 2019 in the
consolidated statement of financial position represented the
issued share capital of the Company and as follows:

Number of ordinary shares

REHENRTEAKERERRAEMELRER
NzE2 - FFERZHEFINF —ZE=F
HEMAZEE SEE -

23. IR
EARBRNER IR - E—TER T N4
A=+ BORAIERARNBBRITIRA - 5F

BT

Share capital

EBEREE (&
2020 2019 2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NEF —ECEf —E—NE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
Ordinary shares of SREEN B LA
HK$0.01 each Bk
Authorised: VETE 10,000,000,000 10,000,000,000 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: EEITRER 800,000,000 800,000,000 8,000 8,000

IBI Group Holdings Limited
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HE—F-_FTF=FA=1+—HIFFZ

23. SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED) 23. BRA& (&)

Note:

On 20 September 2016, the Company adopted a share option scheme
(the “Share Option Scheme”). The Board of the Company may, at its
discretion, invite any eligible persons who have made contributions to the
Group to take up share options. The terms of the Share Option Scheme
are in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall not in aggregate exceed
10% of all the shares in issue as at the date of the Listing (i.e. a total of
80,000,000 shares).

Options granted shall be taken up upon payment of HK$1 as
consideration for the grant of option. Options may be exercised at any
time not exceeding a period of 10 years from the date which the share
option is deemed to be granted and accepted. The subscription price is
determined by the board of directors of the Company, and shall not be
less than whichever is the highest of (i) the official closing price of the
Company’s shares as stated in daily quotations sheet of the Stock
Exchange on the offer date; (i) the average of the closing price of the
shares as stated in daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange for the
five business days immediately preceding the offer date; and (i) the
nominal value of a share.

As at 31 March 2020 and 2019, no share options had been granted since
the adoption of the Share Option Scheme and there were no outstanding
share options.

HMaE -

REIZB—RFAAZ+TH  RARRGERE S ([BRE
s8] c AAREFSANBRFE MG HAEEEL AR
A ERATARBIRBEE - AR B ERTE ETRA
FATENHRE °

PN IERTEITE T Al s B ARAEFT S R DB E £ER - &
AAERBAR ETBESHNDHITRHOBE10% (B4 &
80,000,000 f%) °

ERHBREAR X EAERBEEREN 1B TTHRAR
AR o BTN T BBERR AR N REAE BER 5
HIRIRER 1T - RIBERAARNESSETE - A NMSIRMN
TRE&SE  ()ARABRNNEEASREZME R RE
RAFRIERMWHE : ()N EERBEEAMAREEEAR
B2 e ARER AR U E © (i) O EE -

BE_Z ZFR_T-NF=A=1+—8 BEBRER
BRERT BB RMRIR L - AL EE RITEABAE -
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24,

154

RESERVES

The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances
of each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

24, f#E

Details of the changes in the Company’s individual
components of reserves between the beginning and the end

of the year are set out below:

REE

&g

[=RIN=]

Share Retained

A B # ) AE R R A BR Y
HERFNEEEREER - AREIERREEEE
RENEFROEHFBEHIINT

premium profits Total
B3 %R B RE &R et
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FAT FAT
(Note (i)
(PH3E ()
At 1 April 2018 RZZE—-N\FHA—H 73,613 27,337 100,950
Profit and total comprehensive income FRENREENAEBE
for the year - 19,883 19,883
Dividend declared and paid (Note 13) EEIR IR S (MEE13) - (28,000) (28,000
At 31 March 2019 R-ZZE—NEF=A=+—H 73,613 19,220 92,833
Profit and total comprehensive income FRENREEBABEE
for the year - 44,015 44,015
Dividend declared and paid (Note 13) EEIRRIRTRE (FFFE13) - (20,000) (20,000)
At 31 March 2020 RZZEZEF=A=+—H 73,613 43,235 116,848
Note: M&E -
(i) Share premium (i) R RE
Share premium represents the excess of the proceeds received R s B R NN BB A A B 2 BT O EES

over the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020

BT -_FTF=A=1+—HIFE

25. HOLDING COMPANY STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL POSITION

25. 1E8R A BB AR R &

2020 2019
—ECEF —ZT—NF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
ih=s FHxT THIT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment in subsidiary R B RRIMIEE 1 1
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables H h EURGRIB 319 315
Amounts due from subsidiaries NG B 27,750 21,119
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEeEEY 102,397 80,066
Total current assets mENEEBE 130,466 101,500
Current liabilities nREBE
Other payables and accruals HEMENRIERERTER 668 668
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEB B A R 508 4,951 -
Total current liabilities mEBEERE 5,619 668
Net current assets REBEEFE 124,847 100,832
NET ASSETS EEFE 124,848 100,833
Capital and reserves BEXKHE
Share capital A% A 23 8,000 8,000
Reserves i 24 116,848 92,833
TOTAL EQUITY B 124,848 100,833

On behalf of directors

Neil David HOWARD

Director

EF

RRE=Z

Steven Paul SMITHERS

Director

EF
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE—T_TF=FA=+—HIFFE

26. BANKING FACILITIES 26.
As at 31 March 2020 and 2019, the Group’s bank facilities
were in the total of HK$42.1 million and HK$27.1 million

respectively.

As at 31 March 2020 and 2019, the bank facilities were
granted and secured by the following:

(@) a fixed and floating charge on trade receivables of a
group company;

(b)  guarantees issued by a group company;

(c) pledged bank deposits; and

(d)  corporate guarantees issued by the Company.

As at 31 March 2020 and 2019, the Group had unutilised

banking facilities of HK$35.3 million and HK$27.1 million
respectively.

27. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 27.

(@) For the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group entered
into the following transactions with related parties:

RITHME
N_EB_EFR T NF=A=1+—8 ' *%
BHRITRE BB AL ARBEBTN27T1H
BB -

R-ZE_ZEFR_ZE-NF=ZA=+—RH
RIBTTRVE A T HIBIAMEEA

@ —HEEARNEZERFBENETERZEIHF
g

() —FIEEMRADADRER

(0 BEARIER K

(@ ADAEHAMHDERER -
R-Z-_ZER-_Z-NAFZA=+—R K&
EHREBIRITAE DR R053E BB LR 27 1
BB -

BT RS

(@ BE-ZT_TF=A=+—HILFE F&%
BB ETTATR S ¢

Related party relationship Type of transaction 2020 2019
BRI 5 YRR R REEE —EIEF —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
A company where a key management  Revenue from provision of
personnel is a close family member of  Construction Services
an executive director of the Company
—FRRNEEEEABRALNT R RE RS B as
HITERAOR - 16,163

(b) Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of key management personnel, who
are the executive directors of the Company, for the

(b) EEEEASHMH

BE T ZFEN_ZT—NF=A=+—H
IHFE EZEBAE(AARRHNITES)

years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019 were as follows: E BN -
2020 2019
—EoEF —T—AF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAT
Compensation of key management FTEEEAEFHH
personnel 7,780 7,118
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Bz

28.

29.

E_FFE-_H=+—HUFE

NOTES SUPPORTING CONSOLIDATED 28. MERERERZBRMTE
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOW
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities: MEEFHELZEBEHE
Lease liabilities
(Note 22)
HEEE
(M¥zE22)
HK$’000
FHET
At 1 April 2019 RZE—-NFHEA—H -
Changes from cash flows: ReEnEs)
Repayment of lease liabilities EEHERE (2,094)
Total changes from financing cash flows MER S RHEE %R (2,094)
Other changes: H At
Additions of lease liabilities a"ﬂ?‘fﬁﬁiﬁbu 7,305
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEBGEMN SR 368
Total other changes H b B)azE 7,673
At 31 March 2020 R-ZZE-_TF=A=+—H 5,579
GUARANTEES 29. ER
The Group provided guarantees in respect of the REEG—ERTE —BREARIASE TESES
performance bonds issued by a bank and an insurer in favour YW EBEPRBRHMBARFREER - ZSERE
of the customers of certain construction contracts. Details of TEREHARE BN
these guarantees as of the end of reporting periods were as
follows:
2020 2019
—2-%F —
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHTT
Aggregate value of the performance A%E P EMNBORERE
bonds issued in favour of customers 35,276 38,361
The directors are of the opinion that it is not probable that the EERE RTSRB AT AETERERER

bank or insurer will claim against the Group for losses under
the guarantees as it is unlikely that the Group will be unable
to fulfil the performance requirements of the relevant
contracts. The performance bonds are secured by the
pledged deposits of the Group and certain performance
bonds are also secured by personal guarantees of the
directors and corporate guarantees of certain group
companies. Accordingly, no provision for the Group’s
obligations under the guarantees has been made as at 31
March 2020 and 2019.

AAREERRE  RESAEE N KA EEEET
MEAHANENRTE  AHBENRENLTEEN
EEAERERER METRORBTAESTH
BAEREETEBRRNEEERERR - F
e R-Z2-_TFR-_FT-NF=ZA=1+—8"
BB AR B HERIA T B AL EABE -

1Bl Group Holdings Limited
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30.

31.

158

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2020 and 2019, the Group did not have any
capital commitments.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group’s objective of managing capital is to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce cost of capital.

The Group monitors capital using gearing ratio, which is total
debts to equity. Total debts include lease liabilities. Equity
represents total equity of the Group.

The directors of the Company actively and regularly review
and manage the Group’s capital structure, taking into
consideration the future capital requirements of the Group, to
ensure optimal shareholders’ returns. The Group manages
the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of
changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics
of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders,
issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debts.

The gearing ratios as at the end of reporting period were as
follows:

30.

31.

BAREE

N_EB_EFR T NF=A=1+—8 ' *%
(] A7 £ AT ] & AN

EXER

o

AEBERERBRDREASENFELZEE
77+ DATRBSCERAR [ 3 % A B At ) 25 4R B R 1
M WHERSEEAER UL ERKA -

AEERBEERBL R (ERAEBR AR
EREN - REGEEAHEAG BaEAKE
Mt R -

~—

ARAEZEEHTERRTLEEAERENEAR
B WEBEARENRKERNTE RARRREN
PR B - AREEIREARBE L RBLEMM
M) MR E EM AR EAREELH
B BEFKABRENGRE  AKEEHEBIK
NFERROKREEHE  MBERREER - BITH
B EEERE

RBEHRNEERBLRAT

2020 2019

—E-EF —T—NF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHBxT BT

Lease liabilities HEBE 5,579 -
Total debts BB 5,579 -
Total equity B 135,134 133,507
Gearing ratio BEAGELE 4% N/ATNE
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—E-FF=A=F—AUEE

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
in the normal course of the Group’s business are credit risk,
interest rate risk, equity price risk, liquidity risk and currency
risk. The Group’s overall risk management focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance. Risk management is carried out by the key
management under the policies approved by the board of
directors. The Group does not have written risk management
policies. However, the directors meet regularly to identify and
evaluate risks and to formulate strategies to manage financial
risks.

Generally, the Group introduces conservative strategies on its
risk management. The Group has not used any derivatives
and other instruments for hedging purposes nor does it hold
or issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes.

(@) Credit risk

The Group’s principal financial assets are bank
balances, pledged deposits and trade and other
receivables. The Group’s bank balances and pledged
deposits are placed with reputable banks and financial
institutions. Given its high credit standing, the directors
do not expect any credit risk exposure for the Group’s
bank balances.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its
trade and other receivables. The amounts included in
trade and other receivables in the consolidated
statements of financial position are net of provisions for
doubtful receivables if any. The quantitative disclosures
in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit risk arising
from trade and other receivables are set out in Note 19.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables and contract assets at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using a provision
matrix. As the Group’s historical credit loss experience
does not indicate significantly different loss patterns for
different customer segments, the loss allowance based
on past due status is not further distinguished between
the Group’s different customer bases.

B 75 L B '

EAEBOABEBBREY  AEEXRAEHT
EMFERRBRAEERR - FIXER - BAER
Rk mEBEeRBREEEREE - ANEBANEE
B E IR S AT RIS /T 3 /%/\EE
BRAEUAEEMERRERNEETFTE -

Aﬁﬁiggﬁﬁﬁf%$Aﬂﬁmﬁ%Lﬁ°
$%l1ﬁiﬁﬂ@ﬁﬁﬁ o SR - R T H
S LA 35 B K 5T R B 3 ) E SRR DA B SR

e o
N

—MRME - AN E A E R E R BREUR ST RS
RSB R EROTAE TE MHEM T AEL
R TEFERFTITLESRIAERSAE -

(@) FERR

AEENTIESREERRITES DHEM
TFRIARE S R E A REYRIR - AERER R
THRBMEERERDF RN BE R IFHR
ThEemgE anEERIRT B2
HIASRBOIRTTRSR T EAREREERR -

$’§IE’J1ZTH|EAIEPEET£%&ﬁ1MEW
I  SRA MBI KRR E S R E bR

IEE?D%%EEE?H&Z IR (IE) - B
Zl»‘%@ﬁﬁf’i%&ﬁ@&i% NEFELER
R EERBEERNMFE19

AEBRBENFRABHEEEESEM
BHRYGARENEETEBREE - M
FRAEREECHNERRBEEAE -
HAASEBENEEEREERY BN TH
BEEOMBREABEEN - ERERR
AHRENEBERRETERAEETRTFEL
RIE— @D °
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

160

(a)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk (Continued)

ECLs rates are based on actual loss experience. These
rates are adjusted to reflect differences between
economic conditions during the year over which the
historic data has been collected, current conditions and
the Group’s view of economic conditions over the
expected lives of the receivables. No impairment for
trade receivables and contract assets is provided as the
amount of additional impairment measured under the
ECLs model is immaterial.

The deposits and other receivables measure at
amortised costs are measured at amortised costs and
are considered to have low credit risk because they are
considered are in good credit quality and no historical
default noted. They are also subject to the ECLs model
and the loss allowances limited to 12 months ECLs.
After applying the expected credit loss model, the
Group concluded that impact of ECLs for these financial
instruments are insignificant.

Interest rate risk

As the Group has no significant interest-bearing assets
and liabilities, the Group’s income and operating cash
flows are substantially independent of changes in
market interest rate.

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
listed equity investments. The management manages
this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of investment
with different risk profiles. The Group’s equity price risk
is concentrated on equity investments listed in Hong
Kong, London and Australia.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure the equity price risk at the end
of each reporting date. If the prices of the listed equity
investments classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss had been 5% higher/lower, the
profit before income tax expense for the year would
increase/decrease by approximately HK$628,000 as a
result of the changes in fair value of the investments.

IBI Group Holdings Limited
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32. MHEREE (&)

(a)

(b)

(c)

FERR (&)

BEHEEBRXRERERERE - %%
HREIFRE RS BESENSF
ERHEBEARR « R LB R M AR E
FEW IR TR F AR B R 2 B
ZR2 -\ REAHEEEEEAFENSR
SNBEER B TEKX - I ELE 5 UK
AR ANEERRERE -

Ha M EMEYGR R EHR A E - B
BERAFREEERR - REARZEHIEAN
ERERRIFABETEBOLCE - ZFK
BENAXEREEEREL RN 121EA
BHEERENEBERBRERR - NERTRE
HEEERERE  AEER/ZFTRT
AMEREEERENTEL TEKX

BRSNS

A A LB E B A B AERAE - HA
EEGRAREERSRERAREBIR
LELEL R

R A (B A% L B

AEEFBE FMRARERERANERR
%o EEEABEFTRRERNKEMAS K
BERR - NEEZBEANEBRREFRE
BB B RN EHERAIRE -

TX 2 BURED ERE& RS B EAm Y
ZRAERRRMETE - WOoBEAARFE
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

(d)

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of each of the reporting period of
the Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities, based on
undiscounted cash flows and the earliest date the
Group can be required to pay.

32. MHEREE (&)

(d) "BESERE

AREBNBRREEHELRRERERHNRE
BedK BMREFKTRENRSHEE AR
NEHAREMRSHESHER

TREJIRBERBFR S RE R AR E AW
ERNFNZF BR2INNAERETES
BEEREREHROFGBEOHER -

Total More than More than
contractual Within 1 year but 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than less than
amount cash flow on demand 2 years 5 years
RBREE BB1F HBB2F
REE BERELE 1FEARKER BIR2E BHR5E
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT TERT TR TET THERT
At 31 March 2020 R-B-ZF=A=+-H
Trade payables EUT NS 27,110 27,110 27,110 - -
Accruals for costs of ST ONREIFN
contract works E:tER 172,586 172,586 172,586 - -
Retention payables ERRERE 31,668 31,668 22,399 9,269 -
Other payables and accruals — EfthfE( 5008 fEst & 6,685 6,685 6,685 - -
Lease liabilities HERE 5,579 5,990 2,758 2,757 475
243,628 244,039 231,538 12,026 475
Financial guarantees issued 2% H B BHE/R
Maximum amount ERNEREHE
guaranteed - 35,276 35,276 - -
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

162

(CONTINUED)

(d) Liquidity risk (Continued)

MR RERER(HE)

d) REBESERGE)

(e)

Total More than More than
contractual Within 1 year but 2 years but
Carrying undiscounted 1 year or less than less than
amount cash flow on demand 2 years 5 years
BHIRER HBiB1F BiB2F
REE BeRERE 1FRNIEEX BIR2F BIREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHT FH FAT FAT
At 31 March 2019 RZE-NE=A=+-H
Trade payables ZHENFR 10,716 10,716 10,716 - -
Accruals for costs of ANTEMA
contract works E:tEA 172,919 172,919 172,919 - -
Retention payables J'EW%%’ R 32,436 32,436 24,894 7,542 -
Other payables and accruals  E b fER B K EAT & 6,465 6,465 6,465 - -
222,536 222,536 214,994 7,542 -
Financial guarantees issued 2 Z K0T IS (R
Maximum amount MERNEREHE
guaranteed 38,361 38,361 - -

Currency risk

Foreign currency risk arises when recognised assets
and liabilities are denominated in a currency that is not
the functional currency of the Company and its
subsidiaries.

Most of the Group’s monetary assets and transactions
are principally denominated in Hong Kong dollars
(“HKD”) and Macau Patacas (“MOP”). The MOP is in
turn pegged to HKD and the exchange rate between
these currencies has remained relative stable over the
past several years. Accordingly, the Group does not
expect fluctuations in MOP to have material impact on
the operations. Exposures to currency exchange rates
arise from financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss which are primarily denominated in Australian
Dollar (“AUD”) and British Pound (“GBP”).

The Group has not entered into any derivative
instruments to hedge the foreign currency risk
exposures. However, the management monitors the
foreign currency risk exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency risk exposure
should the need arise.

IBI Group Holdings Limited
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

(e) Currency risk (Continued)

The carrying amounts of monetary assets denominated

32. MHEREE (&)

() E¥RER ()

ARSI EB A ENEBEENR

in currency other than the functional currency are as EEENT :
follows:
2020 2019
—ECEF —ZT-NF
AUD GBP AUD GBP
Wt e BT R
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHExT TET T
Cash and cash equivalents IR % MRS ZEY 20 37 - -
Financial asset at fair value 3% A F{EET ABZH
through profit or loss PREE 6,192 2,444 - -
Overall net exposure BERRARFERE 6,212 2,481 - -

The following table indicates the approximate change in
the Group’s profit before income tax and retained
profits in response to reasonably possible changes in
the foreign exchange rates to which the Group has
significant exposure at end of the reporting period. A
positive number below indicates an increase in profit
where the HKD strengthens against the relevant
currency. For a weakening of the HKD against the
relevant currency, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on the profit, and the balances below
would be negative.

REVINEE RSB A REE B AR ERPTIF
T B A S AR B AR BE AV B B o T XCPAR
KR RETAABEERERE - BHE
P& in - /8T A AR B R (E - RiEH &
XERFERRFE A TIERERER -
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

164

(e)

Currency risk (Continued)

32.

¥ EREE (F)

(e) EWE ()

AUD SR 5% 311 N/A A3 F -
GBP g 5% 124 N/A 3 F -
435 -

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming
that the change in foreign exchange rates had occurred
at the end of reporting period; exposure to currency risk
for financial instruments in existence at that date, and
that all other variables, in particular interest rates,
remain constant.

The stated changes represent management’s
assessment of reasonably possible changes in foreign
exchange rates over the period until the end of next
annual reporting period. (Results of the analysis as
presented in the above table represent the Group’s
exposure to foreign currency risk.)

IBI Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019/2020

FRESMBRRIMNEEERRNREHREREHW
RZBHEESRTANIINERR - MEMMAE
EH(FRIRME)RFIE -

PREBHRREEBYH T —FERSHRANZH
A SMNERE R AR I A 7 AR EF R - (ER
2T ERRRASEREEHINERR - )
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33. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 33. REFETHNEHEERSHEEHME
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY

The following table shows the carrying amounts of financial TEINFEEHEERABNERE
assets and liabilities:

2020 2019
—ECEHF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
F#ExT T
Financial assets EREE
Financial assets at fair value through A TFEGFABR L@ EE
profit or loss 12,556 -
Financial assets measured at amortised cost J& 1k $5/5 2N 21| BE B 2 B B B
Trade and other receivables B 5 Rk H b EUGRIE 25,039 40,237
Pledged deposits EEBER 16,136 16,200
Cash and cash equivalents He RIRSEEY 195,673 109,361
Financial liabilities =R
Financial liabilities at amortised costs TP ARSI RR R 2 B
Trade and other payables B 5 R E M EFRIE 237,801 222,320
Lease liabilities HEAE 5,579 -
The following table provides an analysis of financial TREBHARAFEINEZ M T AERAFEER
instruments carried at fair value by level of fair value hierarchy: 2O
Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for F—4: HRBEXBENEERTSED ZRE(CR
identical assets or liabilities; KRR
Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level E_4 BRE—RABEREIGFEESEER]
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either BHiE(ER)SEEBREaEE) B8R
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from FEZ28E &
prices); and
Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on E=M: ABEENABZIAIEETSHEE(T
observable market data (Uunobservable inputs). ATEREUE) 2 BUE -
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33. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 33. REFE-THNERHEERECREBEHNE
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY (&)

166

(CONTINUED)

As at 31 March 2020
R-ZE-_EHF=H=+—H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£ B HE=R et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FHET FHET
Financial assets at fair value Z A F{E:F A8
through profit or loss TRMEE
— Listed equity investments — ERAKE 12,556 - - 12,556
12,556 - - 12,556
There were no transfers between levels during the year ended BHE—_ZE-ZFE=-A=+—HIEE &EBH
31 March 2020. F'%Eﬂ%\iﬁq%‘é
(a) Financial instruments not measured at fair (a) YHEZEAFEFTENEMIE
value
Financial instruments not measured at fair value include WIHEAFEFENSRITABEESLE
trade and other receivables, pledged deposits, cash o FEU FE - EEIEE iﬁ‘i\&fﬁ/ﬁ% E
and cash equivalents, trade and other payables and B RNEMENREBELEERE o
lease liabilities.
Due to their short term nature, the carrying values of AREIHEER B S5 M A EU IR
trade and other receivables, pledged deposits, cash BEHEEER BReMESEEY EHRE
and cash equivalents, trade and other payables and fhEMZELAEEEZREERAFEZ
lease liabilities to their fair values. MIfEERER -
(b) Financial instruments measured at fair value (b) BEAFEFTEMERMIA
The fair value of financial assets and liabilities with M A G R PR R m ™ %%‘“t

standard terms and conditions and traded on active
liquid markets are determined with reference to quoted
market prices.
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34. SUBSIDIARIES 34. KB T

As at 31 March 2020, the particulars of the Company’s R-IEBE-EF=A=+—"8 AR TEMER
principal subsidiaries, all of which are companies with limited (2 BAERAR)BFEET -

liability, are as follows:

Place and date of Attributable equity
incorporation and Place of Issued and fully interest held
Name of subsidiary type of legal entity operations paid-up capital Directly Indirectly Principal activities
EMATBBR AEARER Wi Fk B
WEARER ERER T BERTRBRRA B B FEEK
IBI Corporate BVI BvVI US$100 100% - Investment holding
Holdings Limited 14 April 2016
Limited liability company
IBI Corporate Holdings ~ RERZESE EERUEE 100%7T 100% - HAEK
Limited —E-RFNATHEA
ARAT
IBI Group Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$100 - 100%  Investment holding
9 May 2011
Limited liability company
IBI Group Limited 0 BB 10078 7T - 100% HEAER
—Z——FRANA
ERAT
IBI Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$10,876,544 - 100%  Provision of renovation
14 April 1997 contracting services
Limited liability company for property projects
IBI Limited BE BE 10,876,544 77T - 100% fREMEIRE OB
—ANEERA+TEA HBR%
BRAT
IBI Projects Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$2 - 100%  Provision of renovation
1 April 2005 contracting services
Limited liability company for property projects
IBI Projects Limited BB BE 27T - 100% {RIEWEIEE MBI
ZZTRFWA—H EERE
BRAR
IBI Macau Limited Macau Special Administrative Macau Special MOP25,000 - 100%  Provision of renovation
Region Administrative contracting services
11 April 2005 Region for property projects
Limited liability company
IBI Macau Limited BPIRAITHE RPIRITHE 25,000 8% - 100% REWMZEIER HEH
ZETRFMA+T—H EERE

BRRF

1Bl Group Holdings Limited
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34.

35.

36.

168

SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 34. B F (&)
Place and date of Attributable equity
incorporation and Place of Issued and fully interest held
Name of subsidiary type of legal entity operations paid-up capital Directly Indirectly Principal activities
ERATBERABARER GLLELL
KHEARERE ERER TEh BERTRAZRE B BiE TEEE
IBI Holdings Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$100 - 100%  Provision of management
9 May 2011 services within the Group
Limited liability company
IBI Holdings Limited B Bk 10078 7T - 100% HREEAEENHER RS
—Z——57ANA
BRAF
IBI Company Storage BVI Hong Kong US$100 - 100%  Investment holding
Limited 14 April 2016
Limited liability company
IBI Company Storage EREIEE 0 {ESTH - 100% HEER
Limited —E-RFENATEA
BB AT
EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 35. MEHHZREER

The coronavirus outbreak (“COVID-19”) in early January 2020
has heavily impacted the global business environment. Up to
the date of these financial statements, COVID-19 has not
unduly affected the business of the Group however moving
forward, the negative business environment will undoubtedly
impact the Group’s ability to secure projects. The Group will
remain vigilant moving forward and move fast to counter the
impact of COVID-19 wherever possible and to look at all
ways in which the Group can maneuver its way through these
challenging times.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 24 June
2020.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MBHE

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and equity of ANEE@EFRAEMHFEENEEUANEE  BENMER
the Group for the last five financial years is as follows: BEHaT -

Revenue Wz 591,129 593,448 580,964 615,376 661,082
Gross profits ESV 51,871 51,731 53,181 58,364 53,975
Profit before income tax [E ey =gl 25,294 24,753 22,564 15,482 33,733

Profit for the year (excluding £ 5 T
listing expenses) (30Br EMR ) 21,627 20,852 18,175 27,130 28,842

Profit for the year F A& F 21,627 20,852 18,175 10,797 28,269

Total Comprehensive income  4F A1 2 T U A 2858
for the year 21,627 20,852 18,175 10,797 28,269

Assets EE

Non-current assets ERBEE 18,065 419 1,316 2,331 374
Current assets BB E 381,241 356,479 294,281 322,822 303,369
Total assets BERBE 399,306 356,898 295,597 325,153 303,743
Liabilities afE

Current liabilities mEaE 261,060 223,391 154,942 186,673 237,673
Non-current liabilities JERBAE 3,112 - - - -
Total liabilities BE4REE 264,172 223,391 154,942 186,673 237,673
Total equity BRER 135,134 133,507 140,655 138,480 66,070
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DEFINITIONS
Bx

“2020 AGM”

[—TE_ZFRRBFREG]

WAGA”
[ARA]

“Articles”
[ARE =2 4HA]

“Audit Committee”
[(BZEE®

“Board”

3-8

“BVI”
[REBELEHS ]

“China” or “PRC”
[eh

“CG Code”

& =)

“Code Provision(s)”
[ <R

“Company” or “our Company”

/NI

“Companies Ordinance”

IPNSIESYN

“Controlling Shareholder(s)”

[ 2R AR

“COVID-19”
(fCcovID-19])
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the 2020 annual general meeting of the Company to be held on Friday, 18
September 2020
RREER _Z_ZFAATN\R(EHR) BTN S _SFRRBFAE

alteration and addition

Bec INQilife

the memorandum and articles of association of our Company as amended from
time to time

RN ARSI KM AR (ETRER])

the audit committee of the Company

ARBEZZEE

the board of Directors

Bxg

the British Virgin Islands
RERLES

the People’s Republic of China, excluding, for the purpose of this report, Hong
Kong, Macau and Taiwan

hEARKAE - RAREHE - FREES  BFHRAE

the Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules,
as amended from time to time

ERRIM 14 FE KR EERTRDEEHERT)

the code provisions set out in the CG Code
& <RI <F A RS

IBI Group Holdings Limited
IBI Group Holdings Limited

Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) which took
effect from 3 March 2014, as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified
from time to time

—E-NF=ZRAZBERNERENE 622 B R ANEA) (BRRKERT -
}Eijﬁﬁ B0

Mr. Neil David Howard and Brilliant Blue Sky Limited, being the controlling
shareholders of our Company, and shall have the meanings in the Listing Rules
R B A% A% B8 Neil David Howard 5t 4 & Brilliant Blue Sky Limited » & #5 &
B LR BIERE

the coronavirus outbreak

RN R



DEFINITIONS
eSS

“Deed”
[529% |
“Directors”
(%]

“ESG Report”
[ESG #i45

“ESG Reporting Guide”
[ESG &5

”

“Group”, “our Group”, “we”, “our
or “us”

[ 3 [

“Hong Kong”
(&% ]

“Listing Date”
[ =7 HE
“Listing Rules”
[ Em#R Al

“Macau”
[BRF]

“Main Board”

[E1R]

“Model Code”

[P A

the deed of non-competition undertaking dated 20 September 2016 entered into
by the Controlling Shareholders in favour of the Company
ERERAAR DB RZ A LBBAE S —RFENAZ T BN T HEF A

g

the director(s) of our Company

RRRIER

the Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the Company
AARNESE - HEREARE

the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide as contained in
Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules, as amended from time to time
FRBIKIER 27 FRE GRIR - & REIRRERE ) (K TRIERT)

our Company and its subsidiaries (or our Company and any one or more of its
subsidiaries, as the content may require) or, where the context so requires, in
respect of the period before our Company became the holding company of its
present subsidiaries, the present subsidiaries of our Company and the
businesses carried on by such subsidiaries or (as the case may be) their
respective predecessors
RARIREMBAR (ARG REERN—RKZXWEAR]  RIRNEFE
MiE)  HIANEMT - RAREIK R EIRAMHE QBRI ZER A B2 A EARE -
BEARRINRAENBE AR RZENB R RIMRENEBH R BERAME)
&= BHATH QA

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
HEEBRFRITH R

14 October 2016, the date on which dealings in the Shares, on the Main Board
first commence

“E-RFTATEA - RO EARBEIREENEH

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Main Board, as amended,
supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time
TRCEH EHRADEETRAER] ~ fFRSAE T U E2)

the Macau Special Administrative Region of the PRC
BRI RITTIER R

the stock exchange (excluding the option market) operated by the Stock
Exchange which is independent from and operating in parallel with GEM of the
Stock Exchange

MR PTEFNRE SRS (T RESEMS) - BB TGEM I B 2 3
1Ti81E

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, as amended from time to time
LETRAIME10FTE LM BEITAESHETES R HNWELETRDEETRKIEET)
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DEFINITIONS
Bx

“Nomination Committee”

[fREEEE]

“Prospectus”
[HBRER]
“Remuneration Committee”

[FHEZEE]

“Senior Management”
[ERERE]

“SFC”

Eiad

“SFO”
[R5 R HIE 15&H) )

“Share Option Scheme”
[RERE T2l

“Share(s)”

[A& 1]
“Shareholder(s)”
[ARE ]

“Stock Exchange”
[ B 32 P

“Takeovers Code”

[ i < A1l

“HK$”, “HKD”, “Hong Kong dollar(s)”
or “cent(s)”
[T g 780

“MOP”
[RPIE

“US$” or “USD” or “US dollars”
E¥

vy
(%]
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o RItE

the nomination committee of the Company
RRGREBELZES

the prospectus of the Company dated 29 September 2016
RARESMR-ZE—R"FAAZTNLENBRER

the remuneration committee of the Company

NI o

the senior management of the Company
rRrlEBRERE

the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong
EEBFLNEEBEREZES

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong),
as amended and supplemented from time to time

BREDIF 571 B EF LB EPD (B IEHER] KA FE)

the share option scheme adopted by our Company on 20 September 2016
RATRZE—AR"FNAZ T AEMNERE S

ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of our Company
RAFRAFEREEOC.01ETTHEEMAX

the holder(s) of the Shares
LSESZ=DN

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
EEBMERIMBERAA

the Codes on Takeovers and Mergers and Share Buy-backs issued by the SFC,
as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time
BEGHMN(ARIWE - &0t RRMEIETA (EAREE] - MR A A
7 MER)

Hong Kong dollar(s) and cent(s), respectively, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
AT R

BREEEN

Macau pataca, the lawful currency of Macau

BPVEE IR

United States dollars, the lawful currency of the United States

XEDEEERET

per cent
Bk
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